

# Commonwealth of Massachusetts

## Traffic Records Assessment April 14, 2014

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration Technical Assessment Team





## **Table of Contents**

Index of Figures	2
Executive Summary	2
Recommendations	<u>3</u>
Introduction	<u>6</u>
Background	<u>6</u>
Methodology	7
Results	11
Traffic Records Coordinating Committee Management	
Strategic Planning	
Crash	
Vehicle	55
Driver	73
Roadway	
Citation / Adjudication	
EMS / Injury Surveillance	
Data Use and Integration	
Appendix A	
Assessment Participants	
State and Local Respondents	
Assessment Team Members	
Appendix B	
National Acronyms and Abbreviations	
State-Specific Acronyms and Abbreviations	

## **Index of Figures**

Figure 1: Rating Distribution by Module	2
Figure 2: Assessment Section Ratings	3
Figure 3: Traffic Records Assessment Time Table	8
Figure 4: State Schedule for the Traffic Records Assessment	9
Figure 5: State Traffic Records Assessment Process1	0





## **Executive Summary**

Out of 391 assessment questions, Massachusetts met the Advisory ideal for 241 questions, or 61.6% of the time; partially met the Advisory ideal for 47 questions, or 12% of the time, and did not meet the Advisory ideal for 103 questions or 26.3% of the time.

As Figure 1 illustrates, within each assessment module, Massachusetts met the criteria outlined in the *Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory* 84.2% of the time for Traffic Records Coordinating Committee Management, 87.5% of the time for Strategic Planning, 43.2% of the time for Crash, 56.4% of the time for Vehicle, 42.2% of the time for Driver, 31.6% of the time for Roadway, 74.1% of the time for Citation / Adjudication, 74.8% of the time for EMS / Injury Surveillance, and 53.8% of the time for Data Use and Integration.





Meets Advisory ideal

Partially meets Advisory ideal Does not meet Advisory ideal



	Crash	Vehicle	Driver	Roadway	Citation / Adjudication	EMS / Injury Surveillance	
Description and Contents	96.4%	77.8%	90.0%	100.0%	89.5%	86.3%	
Applicable Guidelines	73.3%	90.9%	66.7%	33.3%	89.5%	94.7%	
Data Dictionaries	46.7%	100.0%	83.3%	43.3%	90.5%	100.0%	
Procedures / Process Flow	<b>62.5%</b>	89.4%	86.3%	87.5%	100.0%	91.8%	
Interfaces	73.3%	100.0%	85.7%	44.4%	76.2%	33.3%	
Data Quality Control Programs	55.8%	48.8%	33.3%	40.3%	74.4%	82.5%	
Overall	68.1%	73.8%	68.3%	57.3%	87.3%	86.0%	
Overall							
Traffic Records C	Coordinating Com	nittee Manageme	nt <b>94.7%</b>				
Strategic P	lanning for the Tra	affic Records Syste	m <b>96.8%</b>				
	Data	Use and Integration	on <b>70.7%</b>				

## Figure 2: Assessment Section Ratings

#### **Recommendations**

Figure 2 shows the aggregate ratings by data system and assessment module. Each question's score is derived by multiplying its rank and rating (very important = 3, somewhat important = 2, and less important = 1; meets = 3, partially meets = 2, and does not meet = 1). The sum total for each module section is calculated based upon the individual question scores. Then, the percentage is calculated for each module section as follows:

Section average (%) =  $\frac{Section sum total}{Section total possible}$ 

The cells highlighted in red indicate the module sub-sections that scored below that data system's weighted average. The following priority recommendations are based on improving those module subsections with scores below the overall system score.

According to 23 CFR Part 1200, §1200.22, applicants for State traffic safety information system improvements grants are required to





"Include(s) a list of all recommendations from its most recent highway safety data and traffic records system assessment; identifies which such recommendations the State intends to implement and the performance measures to be used to demonstrate quantifiable and measurable progress; and for recommendations that the State does not intend to implement, provides an explanation."

Massachusetts can address the recommendations below by implementing changes to improve the ratings for the questions in those section modules with lower than average scores. Massachusetts can also apply for a NHTSA Traffic Records GO Team, for targeted technical assistance.

## **Crash Recommendations**

Improve the data dictionary for the Crash data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the procedures/ process flows for the Crash data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the data quality control program for the Crash data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

## Vehicle Recommendations

Improve the data quality control program for the Vehicle data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

## **Driver Recommendations**

Improve the applicable guidelines for the Driver data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the data quality control program for the Driver data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

## **Roadway Recommendations**

Improve the applicable guidelines for the Roadway data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the data dictionary for the Roadway data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the interfaces with the Roadway data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the data quality control program for the Roadway data system that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.





## **Citation / Adjudication Recommendations**

Improve the interfaces with the Citation and Adjudication systems that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the data quality control program for the Citation and Adjudication systems that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

## **EMS / Injury Surveillance Recommendations**

Improve the interfaces with the Injury Surveillance systems that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

Improve the data quality control program for the Injury Surveillance systems that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.

## **Data Use and Integration Recommendations**

Improve the traffic records systems capacity to integrate data that reflect best practices identified in the Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory.





## Introduction

A traffic records system consists of data about a State's roadway transportation network and the people and vehicles that use it. The six primary components of a State traffic records system are: Crash, Driver, Vehicle, Roadway, Citation/Adjudication, and Injury Surveillance. These components address driver demographics, licensure, behavior and sanctions; vehicle types, configurations, and usage; engineering, education, enforcement measures; crash-related medical issues and actions; and how they affect highway traffic safety.

Quality traffic records data exhibiting the six primary data quality attributes—timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility—is necessary to improve traffic safety and effectively manage the motor vehicle transportation network, at the Federal, State, and local levels. Such data enables problem identification, countermeasure development and application, and outcome evaluation. Continued application of data-driven, science-based management practices can decrease the frequency of traffic crashes and mitigate their substantial negative effects on individuals and society.

State traffic records systems are the culmination of the combined efforts of collectors, managers, and users of data. Collaboration and cooperation between these groups can improve data and ensure that the data is used in ways that provide the greatest benefit to traffic safety efforts. Thoughtful, comprehensive, and uniform data use and governance policies can improve service delivery, link business processes, maximize return on investments, and improve risk management.

Congress has recognized the benefit of independent peer reviews for State traffic records data systems. These assessments help States identify areas of high performance and areas in need of improvement in addition to fostering greater collaboration among data systems. In order to encourage States to undertake such reviews regularly, Congress' Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) legislation requires States to conduct or update an assessment of its highway safety data and traffic records system every 5 years in order to qualify for §405(c) grant funding. The State's Governor's Representative must certify that an appropriate assessment has been completed within five years of the application deadline.

## Background

In 2012, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration published an updated *Traffic Records Program Assessment Advisory* (Report No. DOT HS 811 644). This *Advisory* was drafted by a group of traffic safety experts from a variety of backgrounds and affiliations, including: State highway safety offices, the Governors Highway Safety Association (GHSA) and the Association of Transportation Safety Data Professionals (ATSIP), as well staff from NHTSA, FMCSA, and FHWA. The *Advisory* provides information on the contents, capabilities, and data quality of effective traffic records systems by describing an ideal that supports quality data driven decisions and improves highway safety. In addition, the *Advisory* describes in detail the importance of quality data in the identification of crash causes and outcomes, the development of effective interventions, implementation of countermeasures that prevent crashes and improve crash outcomes, updating traffic safety programs, systems, and policies, and evaluating progress in reducing crash frequency and severity.





The *Advisory* is based upon a uniform set of questions derived from the ideal model traffic records data system. This model and suite of questions is designed to be used by independent subject matter experts in their assessment of the systems and processes that govern the collection, management, and analysis of traffic records data in a given State.

## **Methodology**

A State initiates the assessment process by submitting a formal request to its NHTSA Regional Administrator. Once that request is passed onto the NHTSA National Center for Statistics and Analysis Traffic Records Team, it appoints an assessment facilitator to work with the State Governor's Representative to identify a State assessment coordinator and appropriate State respondents for each assessment question. Respondents enter the data into NHTSA's State Traffic Records Assessment Program (STRAP), the Web-based application for the assessment. The assessment facilitator works with the State assessment coordinator to plan dates and prepare for the assessment that is consistent with the general schedule outlined in Figure 3. Actual schedules may vary as dates can be altered to accommodate specific State needs.





Upon NHTSA	TR Team receipt of request	Initial pre-assessment conference call
1 month prior to kickoff meeting		Facilitator introduction pre-assessment conference call
Between facilitator conference call and kickoff		State Coordinator assigns questions, enters contact information into STRAP, and builds initial document library
	Monday, Week 1	On-site kickoff meeting
	Tuesday, Week 1 – 12pm EST, Friday, Week 3	Round 1 Data Collection: State answers standardized assessment questions
ent	Friday, Week 3 – Wednesday, Week 5	<b>Round 1 Analysis</b> : Assessors review State answers and rate the responses and, if needed, request necessary clarifications
Assessment	Thursday, Week 5 – 12pm EST, Friday, Week 7	Round 2 Data Collection: State responds to the assessors' initial ratings and requests for more information and clarification
see	Friday, Week 7 – Wednesday, Week 9	<b>Round 2 Analysis</b> : Assessors review additional information from the State and, if needed, adjust initial ratings
As	Thursday, Week 9 – 12pm EST, Friday, Week 11	Round 3 Data Collection: State provides final response to the assessors' ratings
	Friday, Week 11 – Monday, Week 13	Round 3 Analysis: make final ratings
	Tuesday, Week 13 – Monday, Week 14	Facilitator prepares final report
Week 15		NHTSA delivers final report to State and Region
(After comple by State)	tion of assessment, date set	NHTSA hosts webinar to debrief State participants
(After comple	tion of assessment)	(OPTIONAL) State may request GO Team targeted technical assistance or training

#### Figure 3: Traffic Records Assessment Time Table

Following a kickoff meeting that explains the assessment process, schedule, and confirms question assignments, each respondent was sent an email with a token enabling them to log onto STRAP and answer assessment questions that had been assigned to them. The respondents may (a) answer a question, (b) answer the question and refer that question to another person to answer it as well, (c) refer the question—decline the question and send the question to someone else to answer—or (d) decline the question.

The traffic records assessment is an iterative process that includes three question-answer cycles. In each, State respondents have the opportunity to answer each question assigned to them before the assessors examine their answers and supporting evidence, at which point the





assessors rate each response. The second and third question and answer cycles are used to clarify responses and provide the most accurate rating for each question. In an attempt to prioritize the capabilities of each system being assessed, each question is ranked as "very important," "somewhat important" or "less important." To assist the State in responding to each question, the *Advisory* also provides State respondents with standards of evidence that identify the specific information necessary to answer each assessment question.

A group of qualified independent assessors rates the responses and determines how closely a State's capabilities match those of the ideal system outlined in the *Advisory*. Each system component is evaluated independently by two or more assessors, who reach a consensus on the ratings. Specifically, the assessors rate each response and determined if a State (a) meets the description of the ideal traffic records system, (b) partially meets the ideal description, or (c) does not meet the ideal description. The assessors write a brief narrative to explain their rating for each question.

In order for NHTSA to accept and approve an assessment each question must have an answer. When appropriate, however, a State may answer questions with "no, we do not have this capability/use this practice" etc. These responses constitute an acceptable answer and will receive a "does not meet" rating. An assessment with unanswered or blank questions will not be acceptable and cannot be used to qualify for §405 grant funds.

The complete traffic records assessment process is outlined in Figure 5 below.

States are encouraged to use the conclusions of this report as a basis for the State data improvement program strategic planning process, and are encouraged to review the conclusions at least annually to gauge how the State is addressing the items in this report. NHTSA can provide support in addressing these conclusions by means of GO Teams. NHTSA's Traffic Records GO Team program helps States improve their traffic records systems by deploying teams of subject matter experts to deliver tailored technical assistance and training based on States' actual needs.

Kickoff	January 13, 2014
Begin first Q&A Cycle	January 16, 2014
End first Q&A Cycle	January 31, 2014
Begin second Q&A Cycle	February 19, 2014
End second Q&A Cycle	February 28, 2014
Begin third Q&A Cycle	March 12, 2014
End third Q&A Cycle	March 28, 2014
Assessors' Final Results Complete	April 04, 2014
Final Report Due	April 11, 2014
Debrief	April 22, 2014

#### Figure 4: State Schedule for the Traffic Records Assessment







#### Figure 5: State Traffic Records Assessment Process





## **Results**

For each question, a rating was assigned based on the answers and supporting documentation provided by the State. The ratings are shown as three icons, depicting 'meets', 'partially meets', or 'does not meet'.

Legend:







## **Traffic Records Coordinating Committee Management**

In Massachusetts, the Traffic Records Coordinating Committee (TRCC) is established under the authority of the Executive Office of Public Safety and Security (EOPSS). Authorized under a formal charter, the TRCC has a technical level and an executive level whose members are at an administrative level in their respective organizations and capable of directing their agencies' resources. They also approve actions and plans proposed by the technical level. TRCC membership includes representatives from all areas of the traffic records core data systems at both the executive and technical levels. The TRCC provides the leadership and coordination necessary to develop, implement, and monitor the TRCC strategic plan. The TRCC has a comprehensive traffic records inventory.

The Massachusetts TRCC does not at this time identify core system performance measures and monitor their progress for all six core system components of the traffic records system. Currently only the injury surveillance component identified as MATRIS, the Massachusetts Trauma Registry Information System has identified performance measures and progress monitoring. The ideal oversight would include the identification and monitoring of performance measures for all core systems of the Traffic Records System.

The TRCC oversees quality control and quality improvement programs impacting the core data systems. A FHWA Crash Data Improvement Program technical assistance team conducted a comprehensive data quality assessment of Massachusetts' crash data and recommended measures for improvement in a recommendations matrix that will serve the TRCC well as it monitors core data system improvements.

The TRCC is disseminating information about upcoming conferences or training opportunities specific to the need for and use of traffic records in general, but only occasionally are they addressing regular discussion concerning the need for any technical assistance or the pursuit of any specific core system training needs for local users/agencies.

Embedded within the strategic plan are references to Section 408 and 405(C) fund allocations, but it was determined that the projects funded by these sources are only monitored by the TRCC because they have no authority to allocate these funding sources. Although the TRCC does not allocate all funds, it does provide input, guidance and oversight of projects.

Overall observations include the following items. Develop core system performance measures and monitor their progress for the remaining five core system components of the traffic records system. Ensure the executive level TRCC meets at least once every year. This is not burdensome and keeps the executive level TRCC members informed, engaged and responsive. Expand the technical level agenda to regularly include the discussion of any technical issues or technical assistance necessary as well as the need for any core system training needs for local users/agencies.

The TRCC activities were very well documented, thorough, and very comprehensive in their details. Massachusetts periodically discusses technical assistance and training needs.





#### Question 1:

Does the State have both an executive and a technical TRCC?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a charter and/or MOU. Also provide a roster with all members' names, affiliations, and titles for both the executive and technical TRCC.

### Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

Respondents provided a charter that identified both an executive and technical level TRCC and also included a roster with all members' names, affiliations, and titles for both groups which met the description of the ideal composition for a State's TRCC.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 2:					
Do the executive TR resources for their re				e agencies'	
Standard of Evider	nce:				
Provide a charter an provide a roster with executive TRCC.	,	Question Rank: Very Important			
Assessor conclusi	ons:				
Massachusetts' Exe leadership level requ direct individual mer and direct their agen ideal TRCC statemer resources to identifie	uired to dir nber agen ncy's resou ent empowe	ect member agency cies, but relies on th rces as appropriate ering TRCC membe	resources e appointe to meet the rs the capa	. The TRCC as a d members at this TRCC mission co ability to direct the	whole does not level to oversee omplying with the ir agency's

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

#### **Question 3:**

Does the executive TRCC review and approve actions proposed by the technical TRCC?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative example of recent actions or programs approved by the executive TRCC (e.g., an approved project or funding proposal).

#### Assessor conclusions:

The process provided indicates the Executive level TRCC reviews and approves actions proposed by the technical TRCC. In the Massachusetts TRCC, the technical group is the working group level. It is clear that the TRCC is meeting the ideal requirement that the TRCC review and approve actions proposed by the technical TRCC.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 4: Does the TRCC incluc the executive and tech			ore data sy	vstems at both	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Identify the executive data systems: crash, o injury surveillance.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The Massachusetts TF recommended ideal co the executive and tech	RCC rost	on by including repre			5
Respondents		Responses		Response	

Respondents assigned	1 Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
-------------------------	----------------------	--------------------	------



<b>Question 5</b> : Does the TRCC const planning and impleme			IT agency	y or offices when	
Standard of Evidend	e:				
Provide a narrative ex appropriate IT agency and their responsibilit	/ or office				Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The identified busines with agency IT repres complying with pre-play recommended for the	entatives anning ar	when planning and nd pre-implementation	impleme	nting technology p	projects thereby
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
assigned	1	•	1	-	100%
•	-	received	-	-	100%
assigned Question 6: Is there a formal docu	ument aut	received	-	-	100%
assigned Question 6: Is there a formal docu Standard of Evidenc	ument aut	received		-	Question Rank:
assigned Question 6: Is there a formal docu Standard of Evidence Provide the authorizin	ument aut <b>:e:</b> ng docum	received		-	100%
assigned Question 6:	ument aut <b>:e:</b> ng docum <b>ns:</b> ne ideal fr	received horizing the TRCC? ent (e.g. MOU, char amework for a TRC	ter).	rate	Question Rank: Very Important







#### Question 7:

Does the TRCC provide the leadership and coordination necessary to develop, implement, and monitor the TRCC strategic plan?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative describing the TRCC's role in developing the TRCC strategic plan as well as implementation of a project detailed in the plan.

## Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

Massachusetts' response confirmed that the TRCC is providing the leadership and coordination necessary to develop, implement, and monitor the TRCC strategic plan. The example provided, the Massachusetts Statewide e-Citation and Traffic Records System, demonstrated the State is meeting the ideal TRCC description in the oversight of its strategic plan.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 8: Does the TRCC influ records system?	uence polic	y decisions that imp	act the St	ate's traffic	
Standard of Evider	nce:				
Provide a narrative of engaged by compor processes.	•	• •			Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusi The State's respons Executive Office of I Department of Trans certain rules for data Crash System (MAC demonstrated how N system by influencir	e provided Public Safe sportation a a entry in th CCS). Whil Massachus	ty and Security met and the Registry of M he crash module of t e both of these age etts is meeting the i	with mem Motor Vehi he Motor V ncies are p deal overs	bers of the Mass icles to discuss the Vehicle Automate coart of the TRCC,	achusetts ne inclusion of ed Citation and , this example

Respondents assigned 1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
------------------------	-----------------------	---	------------------	------





#### Does the TRCC allocate federal traffic records improvement grant funds? Standard of Evidence: Specify what funds the TRCC is responsible for allocating (e.g., §408) and provide a narrative describing how the TRCC allocated the most recent **Question Rank:** program year's funding. Very Important Assessor conclusions: The Massachusetts' TRCC allocates federal traffic record improvement grant funds and provided the FFY2013 and FFY2014 allocations of §405C funds allowing them to meet the ideal condition in the Advisory for allocating traffic records improvement grant funds. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate Question 10: Does the TRCC identify core system performance measures and monitor progress? Standard of Evidence: Provide at least one performance measure for each of the six core systems and describe how the TRCC identified it and has tracked its progress over **Question Rank:** Very Important time. **Assessor conclusions:** The Massachusetts TRCC identified MATRIS, part of the Injury Surveillance core, as at least one of the six core systems to have performance measures that the TRCC monitors along with any progress of those measures. The ideal oversight would include the identification and monitoring of performance measures for all six core systems of the Traffic Records System.

-
---



Question 9:

Provide the traffic rec Assessor conclusio The Massachusetts T	ns:		rds invento	pry.	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
		ntory.			Somewhat
Provide the traffic rec	ords inve	entory.			
Standard of Evidend	;e:				
Does the TRCC have	a traffic	records inventory?			
Question 12:					
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
The charter and minut the ideal environment programs, challenges					
TRCC meetings.					Somewhat Important
Provide the charter of		nd minutes from the	two most r	ecent technical	Question Rank:
Standard of Evidance					
challenges, and inves					

#### **Question 11:**

Does the TRCC enable meaningful coordination among stakeholders and serve as a forum for the discussion of the State's traffic records programs,



			ANY OF	
<b>Question 13</b> : Does the technical TRCC have	ve a designated chair	?		
Standard of Evidence:				
Provide a position description responsibilities.	, identify the individua	al, and des	cribe the chair's	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusions: Massachusetts met the ideal chairperson for the group who responsibilities were identifie response.	om they identified by d in both the group's of <b>Responses</b>	name. Thi	s person's position well as in the Sta Response	on description and
assigned	received	-	rate	
<b>Question 14</b> : Does the TRCC have a desig	nated coordinator?			
Standard of Evidence:				
Provide a position descriptior coordinator's responsibilities.		al, and des	scribe the	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusions:				
Massachusetts met the ideal for the group whom they iden responsibilities were identifie response. The TRCC coordi	ntified by name. This p d in the group's charte	person's po er as well a	osition description as in the respond	n and ent's narrative
Respondents	Responses		Response	

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--





#### **Question 15**: Does the executive TRCC meet at least once annually?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a schedule of executive meeting dates from the past two program years.

Question Rank: Somewhat Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts' Executive level TRCC fell short of meeting the ideal TRCC meeting schedule by having just met in November 2013 after a considerable lapse in its meeting schedule. The group's most recent meeting prior to November 2013 was in April 2010. The TRCC currently had another meeting scheduled for February 2014 and appears to be reconstituting the group in an effort to meet the requirement to meet at least once annually.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 16:					
Does the technical TR	CC mee	et at least quarterly?			
Standard of Evidence	<b>):</b>				
Provide a schedule of year. If the TRCC has purposes, and meeting	topical s	sub-committees, ide			Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	s:				
The TRCC working levideal frequency of mee				ives, meets quar	terly achieving the





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

#### **Question 17:**

Does the TRCC oversee quality control and quality improvement programs impacting the core data systems?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide meeting minutes or reports that document the quality control activities that the TRCC undertake regularly.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The Crash Data Improvement Project (CDIP) recommendations matrix and draft final report demonstrated that a Technical Assistance Team conducted a comprehensive data quality assessment of Massachusetts crash data and recommended measures for improvement. Massachusetts met the ideal condition by overseeing quality control and quality improvement programs impacting the core data systems.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
Question 18:						
Does the TRCC addre	ess techr	nical assistance and	training n	eeds?		
Standard of Evidence	;e:					
Document TRCC disc meeting agendas or n		f technical assistanc	ce and trai	ining needs with	Question Rank: Somewhat Important	
Assessor conclusio	ns:					
Massachusetts provided information confirming that the TRCC does address technical assistance and training needs. The minutes provided demonstrated these two areas are covered at the TRCC meetings to address any training and technical assistance needs that may be required.						
Respondents assigned	1	Responses	1	Response	100%	

received



assigned

rate



#### **Question 19:**

Does the TRCC use a variety of federal funds to strategically allocate resources for traffic records improvement projects?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide an inventory of federal funds used to support traffic records improvement projects in the last program year.

Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The respondent indicates the TRCC is unable to allocate funding that is not from the State Traffic Safety Information System Improvement Grants (STSISIG). The evidence provided demonstrates the TRCC does provide guidance, input and oversight for the projects funded by these sources of federal funds, e.g., Section 408 and 405C funds but cannot allocate funding because these sources are not part of STSISIG. Unless the Highway Safety Division delegates this role to the TRCC, or the TRCC is otherwise authorized to allocate these non-STSISIG funds, the ideal standard will always be difficult for the Massachusetts TRCC to fully meet. Because of the role the TRCC does play once the federal funds that are not part of the STSISIG are allocated, they are rated as partially meeting the advisory ideal.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	





## **Strategic Planning**

The strategic plan addresses existing data and data system deficiencies and is based primarily on recommendations identified through the 2009 Commonwealth of Massachusetts Traffic Records Assessment and the Massachusetts Statewide e-Citation and Traffic Records System Business Plan. Assessment and Plan evaluations and recommendations for management processes and traffic records systems improvement have been incorporated into the strategic plan.

The TRCC strategic plan identifies a number of strategies that address the timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility of the six core data systems, and the plan reflects a project prioritization process. Performance goals and measures are updated for each project within the strategic plan. Additionally, a table identifying the impact of proposed projects with respect to the performance measures for the six core data systems is included in the strategic plan.

Training and technical assistance needs are identified through assessment and improvement plan implementation, deficiencies, and recommendations. Once these needs are identified, the TRCC and associated agency work together to develop training or provide technical assistance.

The TRCC has implemented a process for leveraging federal funds and assistance programs as depicted in the TRCC strategic plan. The strategic plan adequately addresses how these federal funds and assistance programs are used to achieve the desired results. Timelines and responsibilities for projects in the TRCC strategic plan are identified in the Massachusetts Traffic Safety Information Systems Improvement Grant application form.

Massachusetts has a process for integrating State and local data needs and goals as outlined in the Strategic Plan for Traffic Records Improvements and considers the use of new technology when evaluating projects, recommendations, and deficiencies.

Lifecycle costs in implementing improvement projects are identified in the Massachusetts Traffic Safety Information Systems Improvement Grant application form. Agencies can submit a proposal for grant funding reflecting: responsible agency, project impact, funding requested (including lifecycle costs after federal funding is expended), timeline, problem statement, project description, traffic records objectives, collaborating partners, project goals, benchmarks, and performance measures, approvals, and evaluation plans.

The TRCC has a process in place to address any impediments to the coordination with key Federal stakeholders and traffic records systems. The process calls for the membership to bring these impediments to the Chair of the TRCC, who will then raise the impediment to the Executive-Level TRCC if appropriate. It is recommended the TRCC formalize this process in the strategic plan or in their By-Laws or Charter.

Deficiencies and recommendations resulting from an evaluation conducted on the Crash Data Improvement Program (CDIP) will be incorporated into the 2015 Strategic Plan for Traffic Records Improvements. The State should be commended for taking this approach of using the traffic records assessment recommendations in developing and implementing their strategic plan.





Additionally, the State should also be commended for including recommendations from the CDIP in future plan updates.

Training and technical assistance needs can be presented to the TRCC for development and implementation. There appears to be no formal process for identifying and addressing technical assistance and training needs documented in the strategic plan. It is recommend the State be proactive and document a formal process to assess technical assistance and training needs instead of being reactive and having them identified in the assessment process or when they're presented to the TRCC.

The strategic plan adequately documents the needs of all stakeholders. The strategic plan addresses coordination with key federal traffic records systems including FARS, NEMSIS and MCMIS. There was no evidence provided for coordination with the National Driver Register's Problem Pointer System (PDPS) and the Commercial Driver License Information System (CDLIS). It is recommended these two entities are incorporated into the State's coordination efforts.

The State should is incorporating the deficiencies and recommendations from an evaluation conducted on the Crash Data Improvement Program (CDIP) into the 2015 Strategic Plan for Traffic Records Improvements. It is also taking this approach of using the traffic records assessment recommendations in developing and implementing their strategic plan. The State also includes recommendations from the CDIP in future plan updates.

#### **Question 20:**

Does the TRCC develop the TRCC strategic plan?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Document the process undertaken by the TRCC in developing the strategic plan. (Pre-populate with most recent strategic plan.)



#### Assessor conclusions:

Massachusetts' Strategic Plan is developed by the Massachusetts Executive Office of Public Safety and Security's Highway Safety Division (EOPSS/HSD). Massachusetts' TRCC is comprised of two tiers: a working-level TRCC and an Executive level TRCC. Together, the two tiers are responsible for developing, maintaining, and tracking accomplishments related to the State's Strategic Plan for Traffic Records Improvement. The TRCC monitors continuous planning, addresses State and local needs, promotes data sharing and data linkage, and coordinates with Federal partners for implementation of a comprehensive traffic records program.

Respondents 1 R	esponses	Response	100%
assigned	received 1	rate	



#### Question 21:

Does the TRCC strategic plan address existing data and data systems deficiencies and document how these deficiencies are identified?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Identify, with appropriate citations, how the strategic plan addresses existing data and data systems deficiencies and documents how they were identified. (Pre-populate with most recent strategic plan.)

Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The strategic plan addresses existing data and data system deficiencies and is based primarily on recommendations identified through the 2009 Commonwealth of Massachusetts Traffic Records Assessment and the Massachusetts Statewide e-Citation and Traffic Records System Business Plan. Assessment and Plan evaluations and recommendations for management processes and traffic records systems improvement has been incorporated into the strategic plan. Deficiencies and recommendations resulting from an evaluation conducted on the Crash Data Improvement Program (CDIP) will be incorporated into the 2015 Strategic Plan for Traffic Records Improvements. The State should be commended for taking this approach of using the traffic records assessment recommendations in developing and implementing their strategic plan. Additionally, the State should also be commended for including recommendations from the CDIP in future plan updates.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------

#### Question 22:

Does the TRCC strategic plan identify strategies that address the timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility of the six core data systems?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Identify, with appropriate citations, how the strategic plan identifies strategies that address the timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility of the six core data systems. (Pre-populate with most recent strategic plan.)

Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The TRCC strategic plan identifies a number of strategies that address the timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility of the six core data systems. There is evidence throughout the strategic plan reflecting implemention, completion, and future planning of projects addressing the six core data systems.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--



#### Question 23:

Does the TRCC strategic plan indicate what funds are used to undertake efforts detailed in the plan and describe how these allocations contribute to the plan's stated goals?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Identify, with appropriate citations, how efforts detailed in the plan are funded and explain how these allocations address the plan's stated goals as specified in the strategic plan. (Pre-populate with most recent strategic plan.) Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The strategic plans identifies traffic records system improvements utilizing a number of funding sources. It identifies traffic records improvements utilizing federal funding sources from both NHTSA and FMCSA as well as State funded traffic records improvements. In addition, it addresses how the improvements contribute to the State's traffic records goals and objectives.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 24:					
Does the TRCC have projects in the TRCC			fic records	s improvement	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Identify, with appropri improvement project most recent strategic	s as spec				Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				
The Strategic Plan for Projects are presented recommendation is p The project is recommended	ed to the <sup>-</sup> provided to	TRCC, a feasibility e the Executive Leve	valuation el for a det	is conducted, and termination and re-	a
				_	

Respondents 1 Responses assigned 1 received	1 Response rate	100%
--	--------------------	------





## 27 | Page

## Question 25:

Does the TRCC have a process for identifying performance measures and corresponding metrics for the six core data systems in the TRCC strategic plan?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Identify, with appropriate citations, how the TRCC identifies performance measures and any corresponding metrics for each of the six core data systems as specified in the strategic plan. (Pre-populate with most recent strategic plan.)

#### Assessor conclusions:

The TRCC updates the strategic plan on an annual basis. Performance goals and measures are updated for each project within the strategic plan. Additionally, a table identifying the impact of proposed projects with respect to the performance measures for the six core data systems is included in the strategic plan.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	

#### Question 26:

Does the TRCC have a process for identifying and addressing technical assistance and training needs in the TRCC strategic plan?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Identify, with appropriate citations, how the TRCC identifies and addresses technical assistance and training needs as specified in the strategic plan. (Pre-populate with most recent strategic plan.)

Question Rank: Somewhat Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

Training and technical assistance needs are identified through assessment and improvement plan implementation, deficiencies, and recommendations. Once these needs are identified, the TRCC and associated agency work together to develop training or provide technical assistance. Training and technical assistance needs can also be presented to the TRCC for development and implementation. There appears to be no formal process for identifying and addressing technical assistance and training needs documented in the strategic plan. It is recommend the State be proactive and document a formal process to assess technical assistance and training needs instead of being reactive and having them identified in the assessment process or when they're presented to the TRCC.





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important



Does the TRCC have programs in the TR	o o proces				
			eral funds	and assistance	
Standard of Evide	nce:				
	jrams as sp	ns, how the TRCC becified in the strate )			Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusi	ons:				
as depicted in the T	RCC strate	a process for levera gic plan. The strate rograms are used to	gic plan a	adequately addre	sses how these
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 28:					
Does the TRCC have		s for establishing tin ne TRCC strategic p		nd	
Standard of Evider	nce:				
		ns, how the TRCC on the plan. (Pre-popula			Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusi	ons:				
Massachusetts Traf Agencies can subm deliverables, respor statement, project d	fic Safety Ir it a proposa isible ageno escription, t	or projects in the TF nformation Systems al for grant funding a cy, project impact, fu traffic records objec measures, approva	Improven and must a unding red tives, coll	nent Grant applic address the follov quested, timeline aborating partner	ation form. wing: milestones, , problem







#### **Question 29:**

Does the TRCC have a process for integrating State and local data needs and goals into the TRCC strategic plan?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Identify, with appropriate citations, how the TRCC integrates State and local data needs and goals into the TRCC strategic plan. (Pre-populate with most recent strategic plan.)

Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

Massachusetts has a process for integrating State and local data needs and goals into the TRCC strategic plan as outlined in the Strategic Plan for Traffic Records Improvements. The TRCC is comprised of State and local stakeholders who are invited to the TRCC meetings to present their goals, needs, and suggested improvements to the Traffic Records Program.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
Question 30:						
Does the TRCC conside managing traffic records				eveloping and		
Standard of Evidence	:					
Identify, with appropriat whose development inc technology. (Pre-popula	luded t	the application or co	nsideratio	<b>U U</b>	Question Rank: Somewhat Important	
Assessor conclusions	5:					
The TRCC considers the use of new technology when evaluating projects, recommendations, and deficiencies for inclusion into the Strategic Plan for Traffic Records Improvement. The Newton Police Department project to provide real-time crash reporting and analysis is a good example of utilizing new technology in a traffic records project.						
Respondents		Responses		Response		

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--





Respondents 1 Responses assigned 1 received	1 Response rate	100%
--	--------------------	------



Does the strategic pla traffic records data sy	stems?	rovisions for coord	lination with	n key federal	
Standard of Evidence	;e:				
Provide a narrative de key federal traffic reco plan if appropriate.					Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The strategic plan ad FARS, NEMSIS and I Register's Problem P System (CDLIS).	MCMIS. N	lo evidence is prov	ided for co	ordination with th	e National Driver
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 34:				,	
Does the TRCC have to coordination with k					
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide a narrative de address impediments systems. Provide cita	to coordi	nation with key Fee	deral traffic	records data	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The TRCC has a proc Federal stakeholders these impediments to Executive-Level TRC	cess in pla and traffic the Chair	records systems. of the TRCC, who	The proces will then r	ss calls for the me aise the impedim	embership to bring ent to the

strategic plan or in their By-Laws or Charter.



**Question 33:** 



Respondents assigned 1 Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
---	--------------------	------





## Crash

When the Registry of Motor Vehicles Crash Data System was built and implemented in 2001, the original version of MMUCC was used as the primary guide and when revisions are made to the system, up-to-date MMUCC standards are utilized. Now, sixty percent (60%) of crash reports are collected electronically from 150 law enforcement agencies within MA utilizing different crash reporting systems.

The State does not know the validation rules used within the different systems to perform edit checks on the data. A formal process has not been identified and documented to manage errors and incomplete data. While reports may be sent back to a law enforcement agency for corrections, no process is in place to monitor the process to determine which of the reports are returned.

The crash data system interfaces with the driver and vehicle components to validate the driver's personal information and identify inconsistencies between the crash and driver records and to identify vehicle ownership and characteristics. The crash system cannot access a driver's historical record for violations or prior crash involvement.

In 2007, 84% of crashes had been geocoded to a location. In 2011, 94% were geocoded. Geocoded crashes can then be linked to a road segment number in the MassDOT Office of Transportation Planning (OTP) Road Inventory File with some inconsistencies.

To improve the crash data system within Massachusetts, the State can take (7) seven action steps. First, they should identify and implement edits necessary to achieve data consistency among all crash data systems. If necessary, as is likely the case, do this in incremental steps, taking several of the most significant areas of data errors first and establish a campaign to get information corrected on those items. Second, develop a crash manual and training materials for officers and supervisors to enable their optimum use of the crash reporting procedures and to correct the deficiencies known now and those that become known when changes occur in the future. Third, develop an annotated process flow diagram showing the duration of each step in the crash data submission process, especially for paper reports, so that bottlenecks in the process can be identified and remedied. Forth, scheduled discussions of data quality in TRCC meetings and include presentations of summary reports of data quality measurements. Fifth, performance measures should be created and designed to quantify the level of accuracy, completeness, uniformity, timeliness, data integration, and data accessibility that have been achieved.

Performance measures for timeliness, completeness, and accuracy should also be produced at an agency level and shared with the TRCC and law enforcement agencies. Sixth, conduct regular reviews of a sample of crash reports. This can be performed on an agency basis and reports should be selected at random with a certain percentage represented from fatal, serious, moderate, and complaint injury levels. The results of the review should be shared with the TRCC and law enforcement agency. These results should be used to develop trainings and be compared over time to determine effectiveness. Seventh, continue to develop Filenet to store electronic images of crash reports for extended time periods and allow safety professional and





engineers to have access to the images as deemed appropriate.

The crash data system within Massachusetts has several strengths that should be recognized. First, the State does maintain up-to-date documentation describing their processes for collecting, reporting, and posting crash data to FARS and SafetyNet. Second, multiple reports, such as 'City at a Glance' and 'Top Crash Locations' have been created and are disseminated concerning the crash data. While these reports may take some time to produce due to the long lag time in closing the annual crash data file (approximately 1.5 years), this problem will resolve itself as more information is collected electronically. Third, when the Registry of Motor Vehicles Crash Data System was built and implemented in 2001, the original version of MMUCC was used as the primary guide and when revisions are made to the system, up-to-date MMUCC standards are utilized. Forth, the crash data system interfaces with the driver and vehicle records. Fifth, most crash records since 2007 have been geocoded to a location.

Question 36:					
Is statewide crash da	ata consol	idated into one data	base?		
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a description consolidated.	n of the sta	atewide database ar	nd specify	how the data is	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				·
Specific enabling leg entered into one stat			orts must	t be sent to RMV v	where they are
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%





#### Question 38:

statues.

Does the State have criteria requiring the submission of fatal crashes to the statewide crash system?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the fatal crash inclusion criteria for the statewide crash system.

#### Assessor conclusions:

Fatalities are part of the legal mandate outlined in the statute under Chapter 92 and are included in the statewide database. MADOT Registry of Motor Vehicles also provides evidence of an annual procedure ensuring the submission by comparing the numbers of each jurisdiction year to year for consistency.

Respondents assigned	1 Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
-------------------------	----------------------	--------------------	------



**Question Rank:** Very Important
#### **Question 39:**

Does the State have criteria requiring the submission of injury crashes to the statewide crash system?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the injury crash inclusion criteria for the statewide crash system.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The State does have criteria requiring the submission of injury crashes to the statewide crash system. this criteria is stated in Chapter 90 section 29 within MA.

Respondents 1	Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	

#### Question 40:

Does the State have criteria requiring the submission of PDO crashes to the statewide crash system?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the PDO crash submission criteria for the statewide crash system.

#### Assessor conclusions:

Yes, the State has criteria requiring the submission of PDO crashes to the statewide crash system. In Chapter 90 section 29 any crash in which there is damage in excess of one thousand dollars to any one vehicle or other property that occurred on public way shall report in writing to the Registry of Motor Vehicles

Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	1	Response rate	33.3%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-------	--







Question Rank: Very Important



# Question Rank: Somewhat Important Respondents Responses Response 9 5 55.6% assigned received rate Question 42: Is data from the crash system used to identify crash risk factors? Standard of Evidence: Provide example reports and/or analyses that examine locations, roadway features, behaviors, driver characteristics, or vehicle characteristics as they **Question Rank:** relate to crash risk. If referencing large documents like the SHSP, please cite Very Important relevant page numbers. **Assessor conclusions:** Yes, data from the crash system used to identify crash risk factors. The data is used to produce 'City at a Glance' reports, used to identify Strategic and Proactive Emphasis Areas in the Massachusetts Strategic Highway Safety Plan, Road Safety Audits, corridor studies, and Local Transportation Assistance studies, etc...





Question 41:

Does the statewide crash system record crashes occurring in non-trafficway areas (e.g., parking lots, driveways)?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the non-trafficway reporting criteria for the statewide crash system.

# Assessor conclusions:

Yes, the Crash Data System records crashes that occur in non-trafficway areas and these reports are not considered in statistical data. For paper reports, only some of the data is entered if the crash occurred in non-trafficway areas.

#### Question 43:

Is data from the crash system used to guide engineering and construction projects?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the State's network screening and countermeasure selection processes. Describe how construction projects are funded based on the **Question Rank:** analysis of crash data. If referencing large documents like the SHSP, please cite relevant page numbers.

#### Assessor conclusions:

Each year a report entitled, Top Crash Locations Report, is prepared. Using the three latest years of crash data, this report identifies the highest crash frequency at-grade intersection crash clusters throughout the State, on roads of all jurisdictions, and provides rank, number of crashes by crash severity, and EPDO (Equivalent Property Damage Only) data for these locations. This list serves as an important screening tool for project selection and review. Also, MassDOT Crash cluster locations are used to select crash locations for Road Safety Audits and subsequent HSIP funding for improvement projects. Finally, The Central Transportation Staff, a planning agency, providex technical support to the members of the MPO as well as assist in project selection processes.

Respondents 8	Responses	4 Response	50%
assigned	received	rate	

#### Question 44:

Is data from the crash system regularly used to prioritize law enforcement activity?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample location-based analysis and any associated law enforcement activities. If a State DDACTS program exists, provide details.

#### Assessor conclusions:

Police agencies use MassTRAC (which is administered by the Highway Safety Division) to obtain data and reports for targeted law enforcement program funding requests and evaluation. Also, the Highway Safety Division uses crash data from the Registry of Motor Vehicles to allocate funding for overtime traffic enforcement grants. Finally, Fitchburg police uses the crash data to identify hot spots in Fitchburg using DDACTS methods.

Respondents assigned	9	Responses received	4	Response rate	44.4%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-------	--





Very Important

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important





Question 47: Are the ANSI D-16 ar crash system data die			s for the d	efinitions in the	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a narrative de D-20 were used to de and user manual.					Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion ANSI D-16 and ANSI it was never complete State's crash system	D-20 we ed. It is r	not stated how much			
Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	3	Response rate	100%
Question 48:					
Does the data diction define that data elem			ch data el	ement and	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a copy of the	e crash sy	stem data dictionary		-	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The additional supplies sufficiently describe to manual crash report of itself and no such evident and the called MACCS.	ed inform he data e overlay fo idence wa	lement's allowable va or the State supplied as provided that a da	alues. It do report doe ta dictiona	bes describe the f as not meet the a ary providing a de	ield contents. The dvisory ideal by finition for each
Respondents		Responses		Response	







Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated through links to other traffic records system components? <b>Question Rank:</b> Standard of Evidence:          Provide a list of data elements that are populated in the crash system through linkages to other traffic records system components (e.g., the driver file, the vehicle file, the roadway inventory, or statewide mapping system). <b>Question Rank:</b> Somewhat Important          Assessor conclusions: <b>The driver and vehicle files appear to be used to populate the crash report from the Automated         License and Registration System (ALARS) which is apparently the Records Management         System (RMS) supporting these files.           <b>100%</b>          Question 52:           <b>Do all law enforcement agencies collect crash data electronically?           <b>100%</b>          Standard of Evidence:          <b>Provide a list of all reporting agencies and specify their data collection         methods. Specify any State plans for achieving 100% electronic in-field data           <b>Question Rank:</b>         Somewhat    </b></b></b>	methods. Specify a collection. <b>Assessor conclus</b> Massachusetts is in System to collect th	ions: the process e crash data	of developing their	r Motor Veh	nicle Automated (	Somewhat Important Citation and Crash
through linkages to other traffic records system components (e.g., the driver file, the vehicle file, the roadway inventory, or statewide mapping system). Assessor conclusions: The driver and vehicle files appear to be used to populate the crash report from the Automated License and Registration System (ALARS) which is apparently the Records Management System (RMS) supporting these files. $ \frac{Respondents}{assigned} 1 \frac{Responses}{received} 1 \frac{Response}{rate} 100\% $ Question 52: Do all law enforcement agencies collect crash data electronically? Standard of Evidence: Provide a list of all reporting agencies and specify their data collection methods. Specify any State plans for achieving 100% electronic in-field data collection.	methods. Specify a collection.	ny State plar	ns for achieving 10	0% electro	nic in-field data	Somewhat
Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated through links to other traffic records system components?Standard of Evidence:Provide a list of data elements that are populated in the crash system through linkages to other traffic records system components (e.g., the driver file, the vehicle file, the roadway inventory, or statewide mapping system).Question Rank: Somewhat ImportantAssessor conclusions:The driver and vehicle files appear to be used to populate the crash report from the Automated License and Registration System (ALARS) which is apparently the Records Management System (RMS) supporting these files.Respondents assigned1Responses received100%Question 52:Do all law enforcement agencies collect crash data electronically?Important		eporting age				
Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated through links to other traffic records system components?Standard of Evidence:Provide a list of data elements that are populated in the crash system through linkages to other traffic records system components (e.g., the driver file, the vehicle file, the roadway inventory, or statewide mapping system).Question Rank: Somewhat ImportantAssessor conclusions:The driver and vehicle files appear to be used to populate the crash report from the Automated License and Registration System (ALARS) which is apparently the Records Management System (RMS) supporting these files.Respondents assigned1Responses received1Response rate100%Question 52:	Standard of Evide	nce:				
Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated through links to other traffic records system components? Standard of Evidence: Provide a list of data elements that are populated in the crash system through linkages to other traffic records system components (e.g., the driver file, the roadway inventory, or statewide mapping system). Assessor conclusions: The driver and vehicle files appear to be used to populate the crash report from the Automated License and Registration System (ALARS) which is apparently the Records Management System (RMS) supporting these files. Respondents 1 Responses 1 Response 100%		ient agencie	s collect crash data	a electronic	cally?	
Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated through links to other traffic records system components? Standard of Evidence: Provide a list of data elements that are populated in the crash system through linkages to other traffic records system components (e.g., the driver file, the roadway inventory, or statewide mapping system). Assessor conclusions: The driver and vehicle files appear to be used to populate the crash report from the Automated License and Registration System (ALARS) which is apparently the Records Management		1		1	-	100%
Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated through links to other traffic records system components?Image: Component componen	The driver and vehi License and Regist	cle files apper ration Syster	n (ALARS) which i			
Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated through links to other traffic records system components?	through linkages to file, the vehicle file,	other traffic the roadway	records system co	mponents	(e.g., the driver	Somewhat
Does the crash system data dictionary indicate the data elements populated	Standard of Evide	nce:				
		er traffic reco			ents populated	

(Zynz)



				And the second	
Question 53:					
Do all law enforcemer system electronically?	•	es submit their data	to the stat	tewide crash	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Describe—using a nar used to transmit data system. Include the per method.	from colle	ecting agencies to the	ne statewi	de crash data	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion 60% of crash reports a	-	ved electronically fro	om 150 loc	cal police agencie	es.
Respondents assigned	5	Responses	1	Response	20%
Question 54: Do all law enforcemer validation rules that an prior to submission? Standard of Evidenc	re consist				
Describe the validation the validation rules are statewide crash system are distributed to the of submitted data for cor	n process e applied m. Includ collecting	to the data prior to e, in the description agencies and how	submissio , how the the State (	n to the validation rules checks the	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	ns:				
MA has multiple vende the validation rules of validation and edit che not confirmed by subr	the differ ecks cons	ent systems. Howe	ver, one of the statev	f the eight vendoi vide RMV crash f	rs apparently has ile. While this was
Respondents	5	Responses	4	Response	20%





Does the State main policies and procedu reporting, and postin data to the State FAR	ires for key ig of crash	processes governi data—including the	ng the coll submissio	ection, on of fatal crash	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a process flo documenting key pro of crash data—inclue unit and commercial	ocesses go ding the su	verning the collection bmission of fatal cra	on, reportii ashes to th	ng, and posting	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion		ibing the processes	s supportin	g crash, FARS a	nd SafetyNet.
Respondents assigned	11	Responses received	3	Response rate	27.3%
Question 56:					
Are the processes for	or managing	g errors and incomp	olete data	documented?	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a process flo documenting the pro	•				Question Rank: Very Important
•	cesses for				
documenting the pro	ocesses for ons: s not been i	managing errors and docur	nd incomp	lete data. so, while reports	Very Important can be returned to



Question 55:

# 45 | Page

#### Question 57:

Do the document retention and archival storage policies meet the needs of safety engineers and other users with a legitimate need for long-term access to the crash data reports?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a copy of the retention policy.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The Registry of Motor Vehicles keeps fatal crash files permanently and non-fatal crash reports for six years. Some people feel it would be preferable to be able to access older records since not all information on the crashes is entered into the statewide crash system (narratives and diagrams) if the crash report was submitted on paper. However, this year MassDOT is implemented a solution to scan paper police crash reports into Filenet.

Respondents assigned	7	Responses received	4	Response rate	57.1%
Question 58:					
Does the crash syste	em interfa	ce with the driver sy	stem?		
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide narrative dea enable: verification a to driver records, ide driver records, and/c	nd validat	ion of the driver's pe of inconsistencies b	rsonal info petween th	rmation, access ne crash and	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion Other than not being involvement, it appear and identify inconsis populated when the DOB, Sex, First and	able to a ars the CI tencies be Massachu	DS is able to verify a etween the crash an usetts License numb	nd validate d driver re per is valida	e the driver's perso cords. The followin ated in the Crash D	nal information ng elements are Data System:
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%





Question Rank:

Somewhat

Important





#### Question 59: Does the crash system interface with the vehicle system? Standard of Evidence: Provide narrative descriptions of the crash-to-vehicle system interfaces that enable: verification and validation of the vehicle information, access to **Question Rank:** vehicle records, and/or identification of inconsistencies between the crash Somewhat and vehicle records. Important Assessor conclusions: The Crash Data System interfaces with ALARS to validate the Massachusetts registration number which populates the owners name, address, city, State, ZIP, vehicle year, and vehicle make. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate **Question 60:** Does the crash system interface with the roadway system? Standard of Evidence: Provide narrative descriptions of the crash-to-roadway interfaces that **Question Rank:** enable: verification and validation of the roadway information, and/or Somewhat identification of inconsistencies between the crash and roadway records. Important Assessor conclusions: MA was able to be geocoded 94% of crashes in 2011, for 2007 the geocoding rate was 84%, 2008 it was 89%, 2009 it was 94%, 2010 it was 92%. For records that are geocoded, they are linked to a Road Segment number in the MassDOT office of Transportation Planning Roadway Inventory File.

Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	3	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	------	--



				AND TO	
Question 61: Does the crash syster	n interfac	e with the citation ar	nd adjud	ication systems?	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide narrative desc interfaces that enable or drug test informatic inconsistencies betwe history, contact history <b>Assessor conclusion</b> There is not a crash s	: verificat on in the c en crash y, and loc <b>ns:</b>	ion and validation of crash record; identific and citation records cation history.	citations cation of ; and ac	s and/or alcohol any cess to criminal	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 62:					$\frown$
Does the crash syster	n interfac	e with the injury surv	veillance	system?	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide narrative desithat enable: verification of inconsistencies bet	n and va	lidation of EMS infor	mation, a		Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion At this time the Crash past Massachusetts w crash data and multip	Data Sys as active	in the Crash Outcor	ne Data	Evaluation System	n (CODES) linking
Respondents assigned	4	Responses received	2	Response rate	50%



Question 63: Are there automated data falls within a ran among data elements	ge of acce		·		
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide the formal me edit checks or validat acceptable values an	ion rules e	ensure entered data	a falls within		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio Edit checks and valid manually entered cra submitted crash repo	ation rules sh reports				
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 64:					$\frown$
Is limited state-level of	correction	authority granted to	o viality co	ntrol staff	
working with the state omissions without ret	ewide cras	h database to ame	nd obvious	errors and	
working with the state	ewide cras urning the	h database to ame	nd obvious	errors and	
working with the state omissions without ret Standard of Evidend Provide the formal me state-level correction	ewide cras urning the ce: ethodology authority i	h database to ame report to the origin y or describe the pr	nd obvious ating office ocess by w	errors and er? which limited	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
working with the state omissions without ret Standard of Evidence	ewide cras urning the ce: ethodology authority i latabase.	h database to ame report to the origin y or describe the pr	nd obvious ating office ocess by w	errors and er? which limited	Somewhat
working with the state omissions without ret Standard of Evidend Provide the formal me state-level correction the statewide crash d	ewide cras urning the ce: ethodology authority i latabase. ons: the author ommercia	h database to ame report to the origin y or describe the pr s granted to quality ity to grant quality c I Vehicle Section th	nd obvious ating office ocess by w control staff ontrol staff ie ability to	errors and er? which limited aff working with at the RMV, Higl amend obvious	Somewhat Important hway Division, and





#### Question 65: Are there formally documented processes for returning rejected crash reports to the originating officer and tracking resubmission of the report in place? Standard of Evidence: Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which rejected crash reports are returned to the originating officer and then resubmitted to **Question Rank:** the statewide crash database. Very Important Assessor conclusions: Currently there are no formal documents explaining the process for returning rejected crash reports to the originating officer and tracking re-submission of the reports. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate **Question 66:** Are there timeliness performance measures tailored to the needs of data managers and data users? Standard of Evidence: Provide a complete list of crash system timeliness measures the State uses, Question Rank: including the most current baseline and actual values for each. Very Important Assessor conclusions: There are no timeliness performance measures for the Crash Data System. Respondents Responses Response 66.7% 3 2 assigned received rate Question 67: Are there accuracy performance measures tailored to the needs of data managers and data users? Standard of Evidence: Provide a complete list of crash system accuracy measures the State uses, **Question Rank:** including the most current baseline and actual values for each. Very Important Assessor conclusions: There are no accuracy performance measures tailored to the needs of data managers and data users. Respondents Responses Response 3 2 66.7% assigned received rate



Are there integration nanagers and data u Standard of Eviden Provide a complete li	users? <b>ce:</b> st of crash urrent base <b>ons:</b>	n system integration eline and actual valu	ed to the ne measures ues for eacl	the State uses, n.	Question Rank: Very Important
assigned Question 70: Are there integration managers and data u Standard of Eviden Provide a complete li including the most cu	performar users? <b>ce:</b> ist of crash urrent base	nce measures tailor	ed to the ne measures	eeds of data the State uses,	Question Rank:
assigned Question 70: Are there integration managers and data u Standard of Eviden	performar users? <b>ce:</b>	nce measures tailor	ed to the ne	eeds of data	
assigned Question 70: Are there integration	performar				
assigned	3	received	-	rate	
Pospondonto		Responses	2	Response	66.7%
There are no uniform users.			lored to the		nanagers and data
including the most cu Assessor conclusion		eline and actual val	ues for eacl	n.	Very Important
Provide a complete li	ist of crash				Question Rank:
managers and data u	users?				
Question 69: Are there uniformity (	performan	ce measures tailore	ed to the ne	eds of data	
Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	2	Response rate	66.7%
There are no comple data users.	teness pe	rformance measure	es tailored to	o the needs of d	ata managers and
Assessor conclusio					Very Important
Provide a complete li uses, including the m					Question Rank:
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Are there completene managers and data u Standard of Eviden	users?	mance measures ta	liored to the	e needs of data	



 $( \blacktriangleleft )$ 

(Zwa

				(Ewit)	
<b>Question 71:</b> Are there accessibility	vperform	ance measures tailo	red to the	needs of data	
managers and data u					
Standard of Evidend	e:				
Provide a complete lisuses, including the m					Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	-	accurac avist at this	timo		·
No accessibility perfo	mancen		s une.		
Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	2	Response rate	66.7%
Question 72: Has the State establis performance measure		eric goals—performa	ance metr	ics—for each	
Standard of Evidend					
Standard of Evidend Provide the specific, spec	<b>ce:</b> State-dete	ermined numeric goa	ls associa	ated with each	Question Rank: Very Important
Provide the specific,	ce: State-dete e in use. ons:	-			Very Important
Provide the specific, specific, specific, specific specie	ce: State-dete e in use. ons:	-			Very Important
Provide the specific, s performance measure Assessor conclusio No numerical goals fo Respondents assigned	ce: State-dete e in use. ons: or perform	nance metrics have b Responses	een estat	blished at this tim	Very Important
Provide the specific, s performance measure Assessor conclusio No numerical goals fo Respondents	ce: State-dete e in use. ons: or perform 3 reporting	hance metrics have b Responses received that provides specifi	een estat 2 c timeline	blished at this tim Response rate ss, accuracy,	Very Important
Provide the specific, sperformance measure Assessor conclusio No numerical goals for Respondents assigned Question 73: Is there performance	ce: State-dete e in use. ons: or perform 3 reporting edback to	hance metrics have b Responses received that provides specifi	een estat 2 c timeline	blished at this tim Response rate ss, accuracy,	Very Important
Provide the specific, s performance measure Assessor conclusio No numerical goals for Respondents assigned Question 73: Is there performance and completeness fee	ce: State-dete e in use. ons: or perform 3 reporting edback to ce: port, list of	hance metrics have b Responses received that provides specifi each law enforcement receiving law enforcement	een estat 2 c timeline ent agency	blished at this tim Response rate ss, accuracy, y?	Very Important
Provide the specific, s performance measure Assessor conclusio No numerical goals for Respondents assigned Question 73: Is there performance and completeness fee Standard of Evidence Provide a sample rep	ce: State-dete e in use. ons: or perform 3 reporting edback to ce: port, list of r of issuan ons: erformance ack to each	hance metrics have b Responses received that provides specifi each law enforcement receiving law enforcement h law enforcement ag	een estat 2 c timeline ent agenc ement ag des speci gency. Ho	blished at this tim Response rate ss, accuracy, y? encies, and fic timeliness, ac owever, the perfo	Very Important e. 66.7% Question Rank: Very Important curacy and



# Question 74:

Is the detection of high frequency errors used to generate updates to training content and data collection manuals, update the validation rules, and prompt form revisions?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which high frequency errors are used to generate new training content and data collection manuals, update the validation rules, and prompt form revisions.

### Assessor conclusions:

This analysis of incomplete and incorrect fields were utilized to develop training. MassDOT contacts LEAs when high frequency errors are identified such as coding a crash as a fatal when there is not a injury. They have also updated data collection manuals and made prompt form revisions due to high frequency errors.

Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	3	Response rate	100%
Question 75: Are quality control re- contents of the report acceptance process? Standard of Evident	consider			-	
Provide the formal m control reviews comp report are considered acceptance process.	aring the	narrative, diagram, a	and code	d contents of the	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion It appears that some coded contents of the results from it, how o	quality co e report; h	owever, it is unclear	what leve	of quality contro	

Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	2	Response rate	66.7%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-------	--





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important





Question Rank:

Somewhat Important

Question Rank:

Very Important

#### **Question 76:**

Are independent sample-based audits periodically conducted for crash reports and related database contents?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the formal audit methodology, provide a sample report or other output, and specify the audits' frequency.

#### Assessor conclusions:

While independent sample-based audits have been conducted for crash reports and related database contents by UMass Safe and Fisher College in the past, there is not mention of the way the audit was conducted, the results of the audit, and how often the audits are conducted.

Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	2	Response rate	66.7%	

#### Question 77:

Are periodic comparative and trend analyses used to identify unexplained differences in the data across years and jurisdictions?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the analyses, provide a sample report or other output, and specify the analyses' frequency.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The RMV Crash Data Section and MassDOT Highway Division Traffic Engineering/Safety section creates periodic reports to attempt to monitor the number of crash reports that were successfully submitted and entered into the RMV Crash Data System. Follow-up contact is made, by E-mail or telephone, to police agencies that are identified as not reporting or significantly under-reporting crashes.

Respondents assigned	8	Responses received	3	Response rate	37.5%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-------	--





Respondents assigned	7	Responses received	4	Response rate	57.1%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-------	--





# Vehicle

The Massachusetts vehicle and driver data systems are unified in one system: Automated License and Registration System (ALARS) maintained by the Registry of Motor Vehicles (RMV). ALARS contains registration, title, and license information. As a result, the identical personal information is used for both data systems. Also, the ALARS is used to verify and validate vehicle information during the initial creation of citation or crash report.

The State vehicle system shares title brand information and stolen vehicle indicators with other States by the use of the National Motor Vehicle Title Information System (NMVTIS). Data is provided daily to NMVTIS and the State queries NMVTIS before issuing new titles. The Massachusetts RMV has also implemented some of the Performance and Registration Information Systems Management (PRISM) program elements and is working toward full compliance with the program.

The Massachusetts vehicle system data dictionary has a documented definition for each data field. Edit checks for data values in the vehicle system, performed to ensure their correspondence with data definitions, are done mainly using application programming. The collection, reporting, and posting procedures for registration, title, and title brand information are formally documented.

The RMV also has a process flow diagram related to their vehicle system key data processes such as the collection, reporting, posting of titling, registrations, and other transactions. The process flow diagram for titling and registration shows the steps from initial event to final entry into the vehicle system, but it does not show the time required to complete each step. However, the alternative data flow process diagram includes information on timeliness. The processes for error correction and error handling, as well as procedures for purging records from the vehicle system, are also included in the process flow diagram.

The Massachusetts vehicle system data is processed in real-time. The RMV has automated edit checks, validation rules, and other steps and procedures to ensure that entered data falls within a range of acceptable values and is logically consistent among data elements. The quality control employees who work with the vehicle system have limited state-level correction authority to amend obvious errors and omissions. Nonetheless, Massachusetts does not have a formal, comprehensive data quality management program related to the vehicle data system and it does not have established performance measures for timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility of this system.

The main area for the improvement of the Massachusetts vehicle data system is within data quality control programs. To have greater ability to fully comprehend "how good" their vehicle data system is, the State may start working on a concept for a formal quality control program for the vehicle data system, which will include a formation of the timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility performance measures. Once established, such a data quality control program will be a great tool for data managers and data users to quickly and easily recognize logical further steps toward improvements.

Similarly, the State should perform periodic independent sample-based audits to examine vehicle



reports, use high frequency errors to create new training materials, and conduct periodic comparative and trend analyses to identify unexplained differences in data across years and jurisdictions.

Finally, data quality feedback from key users should be regularly communicated to data collectors and managers and data quality reports should be created and provided to the State's TRCC committee for regular review.

The Automated License and Registration System (ALARS), which holds registration, title, and license information, is a real time that participates in the National Motor Vehicle Title Information System (NMVTIS) and meets the guidelines of the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration and the American Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators.

#### **Question 80:**

Does custodial responsibility of the identification and ownership of vehicles registered in the State—including vehicle make, model, year of manufacture, body type, and adverse vehicle history (title brands)—reside in a single location?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the custodial agency's name.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The MassDOT of RMV is the custodial agency of the Massachusetts vehicle system. The information on vehicle make, model, year of manifacture, and body style are part of the MMVR-VMOD record on the IDMS database, and the title brands are on the MMVR-VEHT-BRAND record on the same database.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--





**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important



#### Question 81:

Does the State or its agents validate every VIN with a verification software application?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the circumstances in which the VIN is validated and used.

#### Assessor conclusions:

VIN numbers are validated for model years 1981 and newer using the VINA file, that is updated 5-6 times a year, which means the RMV does not always have updated information available to validate VIN numbers.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--

#### **Question 82:**

Are vehicle registration documents barcoded—using at a minimum the 2D standard—to allow for rapid, accurate collection of vehicle information by law enforcement officers in the field using barcode readers or scanners?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample document, and identify the information encoded.

# Assessor conclusions:

The vehicle registration documents are not barcoded for all vehicle license plates in the State. The 2D standard barcode is used only on Apportion Plate registrations.

Respondents assigned1Responses received1Response rate100%	
--	--

#### **Question 83:**

Does the vehicle system provide title information data to the National Motor Vehicle Title Information System (NMVTIS) at least daily?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Explain how and how often the State uploads data to NMVITS, specifying the manner of transmittal and its frequency (e.g., real-time, nightly, weekly).

#### Assessor conclusions:

Data is provided daily to NMVTIS in the nightly batch cycle (Monday through Friday). Real-time communication through online AAMVANET messaging also occurs to obtain vehicle information from the national database.

Respondents 1 Responses assigned 1 received	1 Response rate	100%
--	--------------------	------







Question Rank:

Very Important

Question Rank:

Somewhat Important



#### **Question 84:**

Does the vehicle system query the National Motor Vehicle Title Information System (NMVITS) before issuing new titles?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the NMVITS query processing instructions or provide a screen print of the query tool.

Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The State queries NMVTIS before issuing new titles. A CICS NMVTIS solicited message processor is used to receive data from specific vehicle/title application programs, which is used to send/receive NMVTIS messages.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 85: Does the State incorrecommended by AA the brand description	MVA and	or received through	n NMVTIS, <sup>y</sup>	whether or not	
Standard of Eviden Provide the list of the Assessor conclusion State has provided list	State's til				Question Rank: Very Important
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 86: Does the State partic Systems Manageme Standard of Eviden	nt (PRISM		I Registratic	on Information	
Provide the PRISM p Assessor conclusion The State has implering validation of USDOT	ons: nented so numbers)	me of the PRISM p and is working towa	rogram eler ards full cor	npliance with the	e program. PRISM
is currently queried b	ehind the	scenes through the	Internation	al Registration I	Plan (IRP) system.

RespondentsResponsesResponseassigned1received1
--





#### Question 87: Does the vehicle system have a documented definition for each data field? Standard of Evidence: Question Rank: Provide a narrative description of the data dictionary and provide an extract. Somewhat Assessor conclusions: Important The State's vehicle system has a documented definition for each data field, as evident from provided extract of the data dictionary. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate **Question 88:** Does the vehicle system include edit check and data collection guidelines that correspond to the data definitions? Standard of Evidence: Provide a narrative description of the data dictionary's edit check and data Question Rank: collection guidelines and provide an extract. Somewhat Important Assessor conclusions: Edit checks for data values in the vehicle system are performed mainly using application programming. As evidence, the State provided flow charts for the the vehicle entry data system that shows editor modules. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate





#### **Question 89:**

Are the collection, reporting, and posting procedures for registration, title, and title brand information formally documented?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative description of the data dictionary's procedure for applying title brands and provide a copy of the brands applied. Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The State has formal documents related to the collection, reporting, and posting procedures for registration, title, and title brand information. The State provided the table of contents from their registration manual as evidence.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 90: Is there a process flow	w diagrar	n describing the veh	icle data s	system?	
Standard of Evidence	Ũ				
Provide the process f	low diagr	am.			Question Rank: Somewhat
Assessor conclusio	ns:				Important

The State has a process flow diagram related to procedures and policies of the collection, reporting, posting of titling, registrations, and other transactions that are part of the vehicle data system.

Respondents 1 assigned	Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
---------------------------	--------------------	--------------------	------



Question 91:					$\frown$
Does the vehicle syst enforcement authoriti		r identify vehicles re	ported as	s stolen to law	
Standard of Evidend	e:				
Provide a narrative de vehicles reported as sinstruction manual.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio The vehicle system fla flag is located on the law enforcement age	ags/identi main veh	•			0
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 92:					
If the vehicle system enforcement authoriti been recovered or jur	es, are th				
Standard of Evidend	e:				
Provide a narrative de appropriate excerpt fr	•	-			Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
When a stolen vehicle by using the Automated License a screen application.					·
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%

received



assigned

rate

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 94:					
Are the steps from in statewide vehicle sys					
Standard of Evidend	e:				
Provide the process f narrative describing t			s not exist,	provide a	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The State provided a from initial event to fin				gistration, that illu	strates the steps
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 95:					
Is the process flow di to complete each ste		narrative annotated	d to show th	ne time required	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide the process f narrative describing t			s not exist,	provide a	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion The process flow diag does not have access	gram does				step. The RMV
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%

#### Assessor conclusions:

Respondents

The State's ALARS IDMS database does not maintain title brand history; however, modifications to this field are logged into audit records after the vehicle is entered into the State's system.

Standard of Evidence:	
Provide a narrative description of how title brand information is applied.	Question Rank: Very Important
	Very Important

Responses

# Question 93:

Does the State record and maintain the title brand history (previously applied to vehicles by other States)?



Response

# **Question 96:**

Does the process flow diagram or narrative show alternative data flows and timelines?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the process flow diagram that specifies alternative data flows and timelines. If diagram does not exist, provide a narrative describing the process in detail.

# Assessor conclusions:

The State maintains an alternative data flow process diagram including information on timeliness, which is evident from the narrative and documentation provided.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--

# Question 97:

Does the process flow diagram or narrative include processes for error correction and error handling?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the process flow diagram that specified the processes for error correction and error handling. If diagram does not exist, provide a narrative describing the process in detail.

# Assessor conclusions:

The State provided the process flow diagram and a detailed narrative description related to procedures used for error correction and error handling.

Respondents assigned	1 Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
-------------------------	----------------------	--------------------	------







**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important

**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important

#### **Question 98:**

Does the process flow diagram or narrative explain the timing, conditions, and procedures for purging records from the vehicle system?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the process flow diagram that specifies the schedule and process for **Question Rank:** purging records. If diagram does not exist, provide a narrative describing the process in detail.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The State provided the process flow diagram and narrative description explaining procedures used for purging records from the vehicle system.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 99:					$\frown$
Are the driver and ve	hicle files	unified in one syste	em?		
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a narrative d identify the variables				components and	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				•
The driver and vehicl license information.	e titles are	e unified in one syste	em of reco	ord which holds re	gistration, title and
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%



Somewhat

Important







#### Question 100:

If the driver and vehicle files are separate, is personal information entered into the vehicle system using the same conventions used in the driver system?

#### Standard of Evidence:

When the driver and vehicle systems are separate, provide extracts from the driver and vehicle system manuals detailing the data entry conventions for each.

#### Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The ALARS system holds all registration, title, and license information in the State. Therefore, the identical personal information is used for both vehicle and driver files.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 101:					$\frown$
Can vehicle system da information during initi	ial creatio				
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a narrative de vehicle system data to creation of a citation of how the vehicle system information during cra	o verify a or crash r m is acce	nd validate vehicle i eport. ALTERNATI essed, if it is, to valid	nformation	n during initial NCE: Describe	Question Rank: Somewhat Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The State provided narrative description of procedures related to use of the ALARS IDMS database to verify and validate vehicle information during initial creation of citation or crash report.

Respondents 1 Responses assigned 1 received	1 Response 100% rate 100%	
--	------------------------------	--







				(Junt)	
Question 105:					
Are there automated data falls within a ran among data elements	ge of acc				
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide the formal me edit checks or validat acceptable values an	ion rules e	ensure entered data	falls with	nin the range of	Question Rank: Very Important
The State provided no procedures, and step and is logically consist Respondents	s used to	ensure that entered ng data elements. Responses		within a range of Response	
assigned		received		rate	
Question 106:					
Is limited state-level of working with the state omissions?					
Standard of Evidence	ce:				
Name the authority the statewide vehicle date		quality control staff	authority	to correct the	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio Limited state-level co statewide vehicle sys	rrection a				
Respondents					











#### **Question 113:**

Has the State established numeric goals—performance metrics—for each performance measure?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the specific, State-determined numeric goals associated with each performance measure in use.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The State does not have established numeric goals for each performance measure.

Respondents 1 Responses assigned received	1 Response rate	100%
---	--------------------	------

#### Question 114:

Is the detection of high frequency errors used to generate updates to training content and data collection manuals, update the validation rules, and prompt form revisions?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which high frequency errors are used to generate new training content and data collection manuals, update the validation rules, and prompt form revisions.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The detection of high frequency errors was used in developing CMV crash report training. It is not clear if detection of other high frequency errors are used to generate updates to other training content and data collection manuals, updating the validation rules, or prompt form revisions.

Respondents 1	Responses 1	Response 100%
assigned	received	rate







**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important






# Question 118:Are data quality management reports provided to the TRCC for regularstandard of Evidence:Provide a sample quality management report and specify how frequently<br/>they are issued to the TRCC.Assessor conclusions:Data quality management reports are not provided to the TRCC for regular review.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	





## Driver

The custodial agency, the Registry of Motor Vehicles (RMV), has the responsibility for the driver system, the Automated License and Registration System (ALARS). DUI data is entered in ALARS, and every DUI offense is tied to a license or registration. ALARS interacts with the Commercial Driver's License Information System (CDLIS) and Problem Driver Pointer System (PDPS) system before issuance of any license.

All changes to historic, current or pending license status are documented to the driver's record and are re-traceable via the licensing audit trail. Driver training and re-training is also maintained in the driver record. ALARS records are not purged. There is a process flow diagram that depicts the process flows between RMV and other data systems.

For consistency and compliance with policy, the Internal Audit Unit reviews all applications for new credentials. Inconsistencies are referred to the Massachusetts State Police Compliance Unit for further investigation.

Emphasis should be placed upon improving the data quality management of the driver system. The framework exists within the informal management system to develop and implement an effective comprehensive data quality management program.

Efforts to continue to expand electronic submission of data should be explored and encouraged.

Timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility performance measures along with the numeric goals (performance metrics) for each measure are the basis of quality determinations for driver data.

The real time Automated License and Registration System (ALARS) is linked to the DUI data system and interacts with the Commercial Driver's License Information System (CDLIS) as appropriate and the Problem Driver Pointer System (PDPS) system before issuance of any license.

All changes to historic, current or pending license status are documented to the driver's record and are re-traceable via the licensing audit trail.

The State's crash system and citation system are linked to the driver system electronically. The crash system only validates the license number or registration number that is entered in their system with the driver system. The Citation System of the Merit Rating Board uses RMV's database.

Every citation that is entered is attached to a license or registration. It is not clear if citations are entered manually or electronically. The adjudication system is linked to the driver system and registration system. All three systems are maintained by the RMV and all three systems use the same database. Any action in the adjudication system is always tied to a license or registration.





Question 119: Does custodial responsibility commercially—licensed drive Standard of Evidence:				
Provide a narrative identifying	g the custodial agency	<b>/</b> .	-	Question Rank:
Assessor conclusions: The Massachusetts Registry drivers, resides in a single lo		ver system	, including comm	Very Important
Respondents assigned 1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 120: Can the State's DUI s data sy system? Standard of Evidence:		-		
Provide a narrative explanati demonstrated how a citation the driver system. Include ide organizations responsible for	on the DUI data syste	em is linked ige portal a	to a record on and	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusions: The State's DUI data is linked provide specific details expla	-			•
Respondents	Responses		Response	100%



the pertinent data fie sample system repor	Question Rank: Less Important				
Assessor conclusion		vice drivers' training	historias	that include provi	der names and
types of education.	ptures not	nce unvers training	matories		
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 122:					
Does the driver syste improvement training education (classroon	histories,	including provider n			
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a narrative d driver improvement t license training, by sp data dictionary or pro	raining his becifying th	tory, including motor ne pertinent data field	rcycle and	d commercial	Question Rank: Less Important
Assessor conclusion The driver system ca		vers' traffic violation	and/or dri	iver improvement	training histories
	plaies an				. training motorico,

Ass The including provider names and types of education (classroom or behind the wheel).

Respondents	Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	100 /8



# Standard of Evidence:

Question 121:

Provide a narrative documenting the availability of novice driver training history (including motorcycle and commercial license training), and specify the sam

# unetio n Rank: oortant Ass





### Question 123:

Does the driver system capture and retain the dates of original issuance for all permits, licensing, and endorsements (e.g., learner's permit, provisional license, commercial driver's license, motorcycle license)?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative documenting the availability of original issuance dates for all permits, licensing, and endorsements by specifying the pertinent data fields and audit checks in the data dictionary or provide a sample report.

### Assessor conclusions:

The driver system captures and retains the date of original issuance for all permits, license and endorsements that have been issued.

Respondents 1 Responses assigned 1 received	1 Response rate	100%
--	-----------------	------

### Question 124:

Is driver information maintained in a manner that accommodates interaction with the National Driver Register's Problem Driver Pointer System (PDPS) and the Commercial Driver's License Information System (CDLIS)?

### Standard of Evidence:

Demonstrate functional integration with the PDPS and CDLIS. AAMVA audit reports can be provided as supporting documentation.

### Assessor conclusions:

Inquiry to both CDLIS and NDR are submitted for each driver before issuing a permit or license; however, it is not clear if interaction occurs between the two systems with regards to entering pointers into these systems.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	------	--





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important



**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important



Question 125: Are the contents of the driver system documented with data definitions for each field?	
Standard of Evidence:	
Provide, at a minimum, a table of contents and sample elements from the data dictionary or a sample data dictionary report.	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusions:	
Contents of the driver system are documented with data definitions for each	field.
Respondents assigned1Responses received1Response rate	100%
Question 126:         Are all valid field values—including null codes—documented in the data dictionary?         Standard of Evidence:	
Provide sample valid data field values from the data dictionary.	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusions: According to the State's response, most, but not al,I valid field values are doc dictionary.	
Respondents assigned1Responses received1Response rate	10076
Question 127:	
Are there edit checks and data collection guidelines for each data element?	
Standard of Evidence:	
Provide an example edit check and data collection guideline.	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusions: Edit checks are done for all transactions: however, it is not clear if they are of	

Edit checks are done for all transactions; however, it is not clear if they are done for each data element. There is also no evidence or narrative regarding data collection guidelines.

Respondents assigned1Responses received1Response rate100	%
---	---



				(The second seco	
Question 128:					
s there guidance on h	now and v	when to update the	data dictio	onary?	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a narrative ex ne data dictionary is l			procedu	es that ensure	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The State has guidance		w and when to upda	te the dat	a dictionary.	
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 129:					
Does the custodial ag letailing the licensing manual and electroni	, permittii	ng, and endorsemer			
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a process flow arrative explaining he locumentation is main accomplished manual	ow these ntained. I	processes are docu nclude the percenta	umented a	and how that	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
ssessor conclusio	ns:				
he custodial agency nd endorsement issu	maintain				





### detailing the reporting and recording of relevant citations and convictions

Question 130:

(manual and electronic, where applicable)?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a process flow document for this specific process area, or provide a narrative explaining how these processes are documented and how that documentation is maintained. Include the percentage of reporting that is accomplished manually and electronically.

Does the custodial agency maintain accurate and up to date documentation

### Assessor conclusions:

The RMV Division Training Department maintains accurate and up-to-date documentation regarding procedures for reporting and recording citations and convictions. All involved RMV personnel are notified when there are changes in these procedures.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 131:					
Does the custodial ag detailing the reporting course (manual and e	and reco	ording of driver educ	•		
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide a process flo narrative explaining h documentation is mai accomplished manua	ow these ntained.	processes are docu Include the percenta	imented a	and how that	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The custodial agency and recording of drive driver education is po posted 100% electron	er educati sted 100	ion and improvemen	t courses	. The completion i	nformation for







**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important



### Question 132:

Does the custodial agency maintain accurate and up to date documentation detailing the reporting and recording of other information that may result in a change of license status (manual and electronic, where applicable)?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a process flow document for this specific process area, or provide a narrative explaining how these processes are documented and how that documentation is maintained. Include the percentage of reporting that is accomplished manually and electronically.

### Question Rank: Somewhat Important

### Assessor conclusions:

The State maintains up to date documentation detailing the reporting and recording of other information that may result in a change of license status, but the evidence regarding processes to maintain this documentation was not provided.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 133:					
Does the custodial ag detailing any change reinstatement, revoca	in license	e status (e.g., sanctio	•		
Standard of Evidence	ce:				
Provide a narrative or governing the actual each type of change.		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		•	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
Custodial agency ma license status; howev license status and tim	er, the s	pecifics of the proced			, ,
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%









Question 137:					
In States that have th	e administ	trative authoritv to s	suspend lice	enses based on	
a DUI arrest independ		-	•		
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Dues viele the electrones	tation and		a anih a a tha		Outpatien Damku
Provide the documen procedures for admin			SCRIDES THE	processes and	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ons:				
The State does not ha a DUI arrest.	ave the au	thority to impose th	e administr	ative license sus	pension based on
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 138:					
Are there established	l processe	es to detect false id	entity licens	sure fraud?	
Standard of Eviden					
Standard of Evidence	Je:				
Provide a narrative d	escribina 1	the systems or proc	cesses used	d to detect	
individuals attempting					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ons:				
There are multi-level		ed processes to def	ect false id	entity licensure f	raud.
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 139:					
Are there established	processe	s to detect internal	fraud by in	dividual users	
or examiners?			,		
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
<b>-</b>				-	
Provide a narrative d	escribing t	the systems or proc	cesses used	d to detect	Question Bank
			cesses used	d to detect	Question Rank: Very Important
internal fraud by indiv Assessor conclusio	/idual user	rs or examiners.			Very Important
Provide a narrative d internal fraud by indiv Assessor conclusio There are established	/idual user	rs or examiners.			Very Important
internal fraud by indiv Assessor conclusio	/idual user	rs or examiners.			Very Important

(Zuna

X)

(

(•



 Question 140:

 Are the established processes to detect CDL fraud (including hazmat endorsements)?

 Standard of Evidence:

 Provide a narrative describing the systems or processes used to detect commercial driver's license fraud, including for hazmat endorsements.

### Assessor conclusions:

There are established processes to detect CDL fraud (including hazmat endorsements).

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 141:					
Are there policies and information security?	proced	ures for maintaining	appropriate	e system and	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide copies of the r	elevant	policies and proced	ure manua	ls.	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	S:				
The State has establis information security.	hed pol	licies and procedures	s to mainta	in appropriate sy	vstem and
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 142:					
Are there procedures i	n nlaca	to ensure that driver	r evetom ci	istodians track	
access and release of	•				
Standard of Evidence	<del>)</del> :				
Provide copies of the r	elevant	procedures or manu	uals.		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	s:				, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
There are procedures driver information adec State routinely conduc driver information. All r	uately. ts audit	Access to State's dri s on driver license tr	iver system ansactions	is based on the	security level. The
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%





Question Rank: Very Important





				(Zyna)	
Question 145: Can the State's adjud	ication sy	vstem be linked to th	e driver s	system	
electronically?					
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a narrative ex demonstrates how rec record. Include identif responsible for mainta <b>Assessor conclusion</b> The State's adjudication	cords in the ication of aining the	he adjudication syste the linkage portal a link and the linking	em are lir nd the or fields us	nked to the driver ganization ed.	Question Rank: Very Important
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 146: Is there an interface li Pointer System, the C Security Online Verific Entitlement system? Standard of Evidenc	commerci cation sys	ial Driver Licensing	System, t	he Social	
Provide a narrative de SSOLV, and SAVE fo (both original issuance)	r licensin	ig commercial and n			Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion There is an interface I Commercial Driver Lic in no interface link wit	ink betwe ensing S	System, Social Secur	ity Online	e Verification syste	m; however, there
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

### **Question 147:**

Does the custodial agency have the capability to grant authorized law enforcement personnel access to information in the driver system?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative description of the protocols granting authorized law enforcement personnel access to information in the driver system.

### Assessor conclusions:

Authorized law enforcement personnel have access to information on the driver system through FTP or LU 6.2 connection.

Respondents	Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	

### Question 148:

Does the custodial agency have the capability to grant authorized court personnel access to information in the driver system?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative description of the protocols granting authorized law enforcement personnel access to information in the driver system.

### Assessor conclusions:

Authorized court personnel have access to information on the driver system through FTP or LU 6.2 connection.







### Question 149: Does the custodial agency have the capability to grant authorized personnel from other States access to information in the driver system? Standard of Evidence: Provide a narrative description of the protocols granting authorized law **Question Rank:** enforcement personnel access to information in the driver system. Very Important Assessor conclusions: The custodial agency has the capability to grant authorized personnel from other States access to information in the driver system through PDPS and CDLIS; however, other access does not appear to be available. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate Question 150: Is there a formal, comprehensive data quality management program for the driver system? Standard of Evidence: Provide a narrative description of the driver system's data quality **Question Rank:** management programs and the most recent data quality reports issued. Very Important **Assessor conclusions:** There is not a formal, comprehensive data quality management program for the driver system. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate



### Question 151:

Are there automated edit checks and validation rules to ensure entered data falls within a range of acceptable values and is logically consistent among data elements?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which automated edit checks or validation rules ensure entered data falls within the range of acceptable values and is logically consistent between fields. Very Important

## Assessor conclusions:

There are not any automated edit check and validation rules to ensure entered data falls within a range of acceptable values and is logically consistent among data elements.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--

## Question 152:

Are there timeliness performance measures tailored to the needs of data managers and data users?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a complete list of driver system timeliness measures the State uses, including the most current baseline and actual values for each.

### Assessor conclusions:

There are not any timeliness performance measures tailored to the needs of the data managers and data users.







**Question Rank:** 

Very Important











**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

Question Rank:

Somewhat Important

### Question 159:

Is the detection of high frequency errors used to generate updates to training content and data collection manuals, update the validation rules, and prompt form revisions?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which high frequency errors are used to generate new training content and data collection manuals, update the validation rules, and prompt revisions.

### Assessor conclusions:

The detection of high frequency errors is not used to generate updates to training content and data collection manuals, update the validation rules, or prompt form revisions.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	

### **Question 160:**

Are independent sample-based audits conducted periodically for the driver reports and related database contents for that record?

### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the formal audit methodology, provide a sample report or other output, and specify the audits' frequency.

### Assessor conclusions:

There are not any independent sample-based audits conducted for the driver reports and related database contents for a record.



0 (1 (0)						
Question 161: Are periodic comparativ	e and t	rend analyses used	to identify	unexplained		
differences in the data a				unexplained		
Standard of Evidence:						
Describe the analyses, the analyses' frequency		a sample report or	other outp	ut, and specify	Question Rank: Very Important	
Assessor conclusions There are not any period differences in the data a	dic com			sed to identify u	nexplained	
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
Question 162:						
Is data quality feedback collectors and data man	agers?		ommunica	ted to data		
Standard of Evidence:						
Describe the process fo feedback to inform char		nitting and utilizing	key users'	data quality	Question Rank: Somewhat Important	
Assessor conclusions There is not any data qu and data managers.		edback regularly co	mmunicate	d from key users		
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
0						
Question 163: Are data quality manage review?	ement r	reports provided to t	he TRCC f	or regular		
Standard of Evidence:						
Provide a sample quality they are issued to the T		gement report and	specify how	w frequently	Question Rank: Very Important	
Assessor conclusions: There are not any data quality management reports provided to TRCC for regular review.						
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	







### Roadway

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts has a public roadway network of over 36,000 miles. The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) is responsible for approximately 10% of the network or just over 3,600 miles. The remaining mileage is under the jurisdiction of cities, towns, counties, ports, federal, parks and others. All public roadways within the State are located using three Linear Referencing Systems, all for various uses. One system is based on system measures, another is used for HPMS reporting and the third system is based on mile markers. Geographic Information System (GIS) Services, Office of Transportation Planning maintains the MassDOT's geographic information system (GIS) layers, and maintains the data and produces the maps for MassDOT.

The Road Inventory File is available for download and is available in three formats, personal geodatabase format for ArcGIS 9.x users, file geodatabase format for ArcGIS 9.2 thru 10.1 users, and shapefile format for ArcGIS 3.x or other GIS or CAD software package users. A file containing all additions and changes to the roadway inventory for the previous year is also available for downloading on the website. A Road Inventory Data Dictionary which contains all the attributes with their descriptions is also available for downloading on the website. MassDOT is commended for having a robust roadway data portal which is available at:

(http://www.massdot.state.ma.us/planning/Main/MapsDataandReports.aspx).

MassDOT also has a very robust crash portal (http://services.massdot.state.ma.us/crashportal) which is available for use to map crashes and query the crash database. Additionally, the crash portal provides a standard report of crashes by cities and towns and an ad hoc query tool which can be used to query the database using specific parameters. Additionally, the MassDOT identifies and maps high crash locations for safety analysis and management use. MassDOT publishes a yearly Top Locations Crash Report to use in developing safety improvement projects. It is evident that MassDOT uses this information for the development of the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). MassDOT is commended for developing a crash data portal that is very robust and is easy to use.

Ideally States are encouraged to collect the Fundamental Data Elements (FDEs) of The Model Inventory of Data Elements (MIRE) for all public roads. These fundamental data elements are the basic roadway data elements recommended to be collected that a State can combine with crash data for analysis to identify safety problems and to make more effective safety countermeasure decisions for the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). It was unclear in the responses to this assessment as to the FDEs MassDOT collects and maintains in their Roadway Inventory. With respect to the Non-Fundamental MIRE data elements, no State DOT collects all, or nearly all MIRE elements for the Roadway Inventory file. It was difficult during this assessment process to determine the level to which Mass DOT collects the non-fundamental MIRE elements. It would be beneficial to conduct an assessment of the MIRE elements collected by MassDOT to the both the recommended MIRE FDEs and Non-Fundamental MIRE data elements. To assist with this effort, MassDOT may consider requesting a Roadway Data Improvement Program (RDIP) through the FHWA Division Office. Another option would be to request a Go-Team through the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA). The Traffic Records Coordinating Committee (TRCC) can assist with this. Either route will provide MassDOT with technical assistance to enhance their data collection capabilities and more efficiently collect uniform roadway data.





Local agencies such as Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) often collect and maintain a wealth of roadway information. It was identified that different location methodologies are used by locals to collect data requiring MassDOT to customize the data to work with the various systems. It is critical to use compatible location methodologies to support the Roadway Inventory File and minimize the effort required to import local data in the State's enterprise roadway system.

MassDOT has no formal or documented procedures are in place to identify, prioritize or address data quality errors or issues. The overall quality of information in the Roadway system is dependent upon the GIS Services Validation report in addition to validation reports form FHWA's HPMS software for error/edit checking as data is entered into the statewide system. There was no schedule provided for the release of the validation report or process used to provide feedback to the data collectors. It was also unclear as to whether priority is placed on critical data elements. Ideally, a formal process should be developed and errors identified through the validation process is shared with the data collectors and/or office providing the data. This could be accomplished through training sessions. The RDIP process or TRCC could be instrumental in assisting with this effort.

Performance measures can provide the State a tool for helping assess data quality and establishing goals for data improvement. Ideally performance measures for timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration, and accessibility should be established for the roadway system. Model performance measures for the six core data systems including Roadway can assist the State in developing performance measures and can be found at: http://www-nrd.nhtsa.dot.gov/Pubs/811441.pdf.

As a follow-up to this publication, FHWA has also published guidance titled, Performance Measures for Roadway Inventory Data. MassDOT did not identify any formal or established performance measures for timeliness, accuracy, completeness, uniformity, integration and accessibility. MassDOT indicates that the Highway Performance Monitoring System (HPMS) requirements are met. With the wealth of data available through the MassDOT's roadway information and crash portals, it is possible to enhance the existing process to develop some of the performance measures. Formal metrics should be established to measure the performance. The State can use the documents mentioned above to assist in developing performance measures for Roadway Inventory Data or use the RDIP or Go-Team process. The TRCC can also assist in this effort.

The Road Inventory File, a file containing all additions and changes to the roadway inventory for the previous year, and a Road Inventory Data Dictionary containing all the attributes with their descriptions are available for downloading.

MassDOT has also developed a crash data portal that is very robust and is easy to use. The scope of information in MassDOT is comprehensive and is very accessible.



### **Question 164:**

Are all public roadways within the State located using a compatible location referencing system?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a map displaying all public roads that represents the system's statewide capabilities. Identify what percentage of the public road systems is State owned or maintained. Explain whether the State uses a single compatible location referencing system for all public roads or if it has a set of compatible location referencing systems. Prior reports are acceptable.

### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation has a GIS road inventory database that contains all public roads in the State and a good portion of the private roads. All public roadways within the State are located using three Linear Referencing Systems, all for various uses. One system is based on system measures, another is used for HPMS reporting and the third system is based on mile markers. All public roads are shown on the map and the State is responsible for approximately 10% of the 36,350 miles that make up the public road network.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--



Question Rank: Very Important



### **Question 165:**

Are the roadway and traffic data elements located using a compatible location referencing system (e.g., LRS, GIS)?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a map displaying roadway features and traffic volume (FDEs) for all public roads (State and non-State routes) that is representative of the system's statewide capabilities. Explain whether the State uses a single compatible location referencing system for all public roads or if it has a set of compatible location referencing systems. Prior reports are acceptable.

Question Rank: Very Important

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

### Assessor conclusions:

Massachusetts Department of Transportation's Roadway Inventory GIS has a layer containing the spatial linework for all the public and a good portion of the private roadways in Massachusetts, along with roadway attributes covering the roadway classification, ownership, physical conditions, traffic volumes, pavement conditions, highway performance monitoring information, and other attributes. MassDOT's gisRoadInventory database has three compatible Linear Referencing Systems for various uses. One system is based on system measures, another system is used for HPMS reporting and the third system is based on the Mile Marker signs in the field. This information is available for downloading at:

http://www.massdot.state.ma.us/planning/Main/MapsDataandReports/Data/GISData/RoadInventory.aspx

Respondents 2 assigned	Responses received	1 Response 50% rate
---------------------------	-----------------------	---------------------

### Question 166:

Is there an enterprise roadway information system containing roadway and traffic data elements for all public roads?

### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the enterprise roadway information system, which should enable linking between the various roadway information systems including: roadway, traffic, location reference, bridge, and pavement data.

### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation's enterprise roadway information system is the gisRoadInventory database. The RoadSegment\_ID from this file links to many tables including Bridge and Pavement. Fields from these tables have links to other roadway system files resulting in a seamless linking of the various roadway information systems.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

# Question 167:

Does the State have the ability to identify crash locations using a referencing system compatible with the one(s) used for roadways?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a map displaying crash locations on all public roads that is representative of the system's statewide capabilities. Explain whether the State uses a single compatible location referencing system for crash, roadway features, and traffic volume on all public roads or if it has a set of compatible location referencing systems. Prior reports are acceptable

### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation has the ability to identify crash locations through ArcGIS. MassDOT has developed a crash portal which is web-based and can be used to map map crashes statewide to the basemap. Additionally, the crash portal provides a standard report of crashes by cities and towns and an ad hoc query tool for specific parameters. The crash portal can be accessed at: http://services.massdot.state.ma.us/crashportal. MassDOT is commended for developing a crash data portal that is very robust and is easy to use.

Respondents	2	Responses	1	Response	33.3%
assigned	3	received	I	rate	33.370

### Question 168:

Is crash data incorporated into the enterprise roadway information system for safety analysis and management use?

### Standard of Evidence:

Describe how the crash data is incorporated into the enterprise roadway information system and provide an example of how it is used for safety analysis.



Very Important

### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation has a very robust crash portal (http://services.massdot.state.ma.us/crashportal) which is available for use to map crashes and query the crash database. Additionally, the MassDOT identifies and maps high crash locations for safety analysis and management use. MassDOT publishes a yearly Top Locations Crash Report to use in developing safety improvement projects.

Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	1	Response rate	33.3%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-------	--



### Question 169:

Are all the MIRE Fundamental Data Elements collected for all public roads?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a list of FDEs collected and their definitions. Specify if the data collected is for all public roads or State roads only. If the State wishes to cite the data dictionary directly, please identify the FDEs.

### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation indicates that this information is unavailable at this time.

Respondents assigned	4	Responses received	1	Response rate	25%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

### Question 170:

Do all additional collected data elements for any public roads conform to the data elements included in MIRE?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a list of additional MIRE data elements collected beyond the FDEs. Specify if the data elements are collected for all public roads or State roads only.

### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation indicates that this information is unavailable at this time.

Respondents 4 Respon assigned rece	eived 1 Response 25%
---------------------------------------	----------------------







Somewhat Important

**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important





Question 173:					$\frown$
Does roadway data i data dictionary?	imported fr	om local or municip	al sources o	comply with the	
Standard of Eviden	nce:				
Provide a narrative s accepted and includ municipal sources. I the data dictionary s	ed in the s Describe if	tatewide roadway o	database fro	m local or	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusi	ons:				
The Massachusetts this time.	Departmer	nt of Transportation	indicates th	at this informatic	n is unavailable at
Respondents assigned	4	Responses received	1	Response rate	25%
Question 174:					$\frown$
Is there guidance on	how and	when to update the	data dictior	nary?	
Standard of Eviden	ice:				
Provide a narrative e			d procedure	s that ensure	Question Rank: Very Important
the data dictionary is Assessor conclusion					· ·
the data dictionary is Assessor conclusion There is no formal periodic or formal re requirements necessor requirement change	rocess or g view proce sitate a cha	ess was identified. T	The data dic	tionary is update	dictionary. No ed when





### Question 175:

Are the steps for incorporating new elements into the roadway information system (e.g., a new MIRE element) documented to show the flow of information?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide documentation or a narrative explaining the process for adding new data elements (e.g., a new MIRE element) to the roadway system. Identify who is responsible for each step in the process.

Question Rank: Very Important

### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation has a process for incorporating new elements into the roadway information system. Depending on the required change, mangers of the various business units will determine the best method for incorporating the new element(s) into the roadway information system. Custom tools may be developed to automate the process such as the tool that was developed to add new LRS records to the database.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
<b>Question 176:</b> Are the steps for upda	ating road	lway information do	cumented t	to show the flow	
of information?	ating road	iway information do	cumenteu		
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide documentation data elements in the step in the process.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The Massachusetts E Process to their webs required information i (http://www.massdot. ss.aspx)	site. A dov s also on	wnloadable New Ro the website. The w	ad Entry F ebsite is a	orm along with th	ne steps and
Description		_		_	





				E ANA	
Question 177:					
Are the steps for archidocumented?	ving and	accessing historical	roadway	v inventory	
Standard of Evidence	<b>e</b> :				
Provide documentation and accessing historic step in the process.					Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	S:				
year-end statistics fror summarizes the numb database provides a d deleted segments - an ChangeLogXXXX file of system posted on the	er of cha etailed li d corres correspo	anges to the Road In sting of all changes I ponding RoadSegme nding to the changes	ventory f by data c ent_ID va	ile. A CD in a Mic lassification - incl alues. Additionally	rosoft Access uding a list of all , there is a
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 178:					
Are the procedures tha collect, manage, and s documented?					
Standard of Evidence	<b>:</b>				
Provide documentation procedures for collecti roadway inventory. Ide	ng, man	aging, and submitting	g data to	the State	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion					
The Massachusetts De posted to their website Entry Form can be dow	for loca	I agencies to submit	roadway	data to MassDO	T. The New Road
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



				(The second seco	
Question 179:					
Are local agency pro- compatible with the S				e roadway data	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide official docur compatibility betweer achieved. Identify wh	n local data	a systems and the S	State road	lway inventory is	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The Massachusetts I collecting and manage roadway inventory. D	Departmer	adway data which a	are compa	atible with the Stat	te's enterprise
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 180:					$\frown$
Are there guidelines the State roadway in			s as they	are described in	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide the guideline data dictionary.	s and cite	an example of data	collection	n pursuant to the	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The Massachusetts I elements as they are along with the guidelin http://www.massdot.s	Departmer described nes can b	in the in the State e found at:	roadway	data dictionary. T	he data dictionary
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



Assessor conclusion The Massachusetts I this time.		t of Transportation	indicates the		
Accessor conclusion	JUIS.	<b>.</b> . <b>(T</b> urner and a Cart	indicatos the	at this informatio	n is unavailable at
Provide a narrative the roadway information table, view) that inclu segment of road.	systems. F udes both ro	Provide the result o	of a single qu	uery (e.g.,	Question Rank: Very Important
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Question 182: Are there interface lin information systems?		necting the State's	s discrete ro	adway	
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
The Massachusetts for State roadway inf be customized to wo	Department formation sy	ystems which are i			
and the associated s	systems.		5 - 5	,	Very Important
Describe the locatior use it. If there is mor					Question Rank:
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
	1	-	<b>,</b>		
Are the location codi systems compatible?		Jugies for all State	= IUauwav II	IIUIIIauuui	



Question 183: Are the location codir systems compatible?	•	lologies for all regio	nal and lo	cal roadway	
Standard of Evidence	ce:				
Provide a narrative de associated regional a location referencing s local systems.	nd local r	oadway systems. If	there is m	nore than one	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio The location coding n compatible. There are	nethodolo				s are not
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 184: Do roadway data syst MPOs, municipalities information system? Standard of Evidend	) interface				
Provide a narrative th or local roadway infor information system. P includes both roadwa	rmation sy Provide the	vstems to the State's e result of a single qu	enterpris ery (e.g.,	se roadway table, view) that	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio Roadway data system MassDOT enterprise	ns mainta		l local cus	stodians do not in	terface with the
Respondents		Responses		Response	



(<

(Zwit

2



Question Rank:

Somewhat Important

### **Question 185:**

Does the State enterprise roadway information system allow MPOs and local transportation agencies on-demand access to data?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative that describes the system or process that enables localities to query the data system.

### Assessor conclusions:

MPOs and local agencies can access an archived version of the State enterprise roadway information system on-line. These agencies can access the database as needed. The file is available in three formats, personal geodatabase format for ArcGIS 9.x users, file geodatabase format for ArcGIS 9.2 thru 10.1 users, and shapefile format for ArcGIS 3.x or other GIS or CAD software package users. The file is generated each January and includes updates that were made during the previous calendar year.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 186:					
Do Roadway system quality reports?	data mar	agers regularly prod	luce and a	analyze data	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide a sample rep	ort and s	pecify the release so	hedule fo	or the reports.	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The Massachusetts D RoadInventory Valida					

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--



				AND TO	
Question 187: Is the overall quality o formal program of erro system?					
Standard of Evidenc Describe the formal procedures for both a	rogram o			de specific	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The Massachusetts D the HPMS-related and program for error/edit HPMS submittal.	epartmer the Mas	sDOT validation pro	cesses.	There does not app	bear to be a formal
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 188: Are there procedures Standard of Evidenc	•	tizing and addressin	g detecte	ed errors?	
Describe the procedure both automated and n procedures are forma	nanual pr	ocesses. Please sp			Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The Massachusetts D prioritizing and addres procedures used for p	epartments	ected errors; howeve	er, no de	scription or docum	
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%


# Question 189:

Are there procedures for sharing quality control information with data collectors through individual and agency-level feedback and training?

# Standard of Evidence:

Describe all the procedures used for sharing quality control information with data collectors.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation does not have procedures for sharing quality control information with the data collectors.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

# Question 190:

Is there a set of established performance measures for the timeliness of the State enterprise roadway information system?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation did not provide metrics to indicate there is a set of performance measures for timeliness of the State's enterprise roadway information system. Timeliness refers to the time a data element is collected to the time it takes to update the roadway information system. One timeliness measure from the Model Performance Measures for State Traffic Records Systems is, "The median or mean number of days from (a) roadway project completion to (b) the date the updated critical data elements are entered into the roadway inventory file".

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
assigned		receiveu		Tale	







Very Important



Question Rank: Very Important

# 109 | Page

#### Question 191:

Is there a set of established performance measures for the timeliness of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians (municipalities, MPOs, etc.)?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation did not provide metrics to indicate there is a set of performance measures for timeliness of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
Outpution 102						
Question 192:						
	Is there a set of established performance measures for the accuracy of the State enterprise roadway information system?					

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation did not provide metrics to indicate there is a set of performance measures for the accuracy of the State's enterprise roadway information system. Accuracy is defined as whether or not the information that is entered into the roadway inventory database is, in fact, a valid representation of what is found in the actual roadway environment. One accuracy measure from the Model Performance Measures for State Traffic Records Systems is, "The percentage of all road segment records with no errors in critical data elements".

Respondents 2	Responses ,	1 Response 5	50%
assigned	received	rate 5	







Question Rank: Somewhat Important

Question Rank: Very Important

# Question 193:

Is there a set of established performance measures for the accuracy of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians (municipalities, MPOs, etc.)?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation does not have a set of performance measures for accuracy of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians. While local roadway agencies complete a form regarding local roadway information, there is no indication metrics are used to determine the accuracy of the data submitted by the local roadway agencies.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 194:	lished ne	erformance measure	s for the c	completeness of	
Is there a set of estab the State enterprise re	•		s for the c	completeness of	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide the metrics us	sed.			·	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ne				

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation did not provide metrics to indicate there is a set of performance measures for completeness of the State's enterprise roadway information system. Completeness is defined as having all required data elements (ideally accurate data) within the roadway inventory file for all required roads. One completeness measure from the Model Performance Measures for State Traffic Records Systems is, "The percentage of road segment records with no missing critical data elements."

Respondents 2	Responses	1 Response	50%
assigned	received	rate	





Question Rank: Somewhat

Important

# 111 | Page

# Question 195: Is there a set of established performance measures for the completeness of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians (municipalities, MPOs, etc.)? Standard of Evidence: Provide the metrics used. Assessor conclusions:

The The Massachusetts Department of Transportation does not have performance measures for the completeness of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

# Question 196:

Is there a set of established performance measures for the uniformity of the State enterprise roadway information system?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation did not provide metrics to indicate there is a set of performance measures for uniformity of the State's enterprise roadway information system. The validation report provides a listing of the errors and does not identify performance measures or metrics used to measure for uniformity. Uniformity reflects the consistency among the files or records in a database and may be measured against some independent standard, preferably a national standard. One uniformity measure from the Model Performance Measures for State Traffic Records Systems is, "The number of Model Inventory of Roadway Elements (MIRE)-compliant data elements entered into a database or obtained via linkage to other databases."

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
----------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--





Question Rank: Somewhat Important

Question Rank: Very Important

# 112 | Page

# Question 197:

Is there a set of established performance measures for the uniformity of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians (municipalities. MPOs, etc.)?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The The Massachusetts Department of Transportation does not have performance measures for the uniformity of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians.

Respondents assigned 2 Responses received	1 Response rate	50%
---	--------------------	-----

# **Question 198:**

Is there a set of established performance measures for the accessibility of State enterprise roadway information systems?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation did not provide metrics to indicate there is a set of performance measures for accessibility of the State's enterprise roadway information system. Accessibility concerns the degree to which data or information from the data files are readily and easily available to legitimate users. Examples of accessibility performance measures can be found in NHTSA's, "Model Performance Measures for State Traffic Records Systems" and FHWA's "Performance Measures for Roadway Inventory Data".

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--







Somewhat Important

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

Question Rank:

				And Co	
Question 199: Is there a set of estat the roadway data ma (municipalities, MPOs	intained b			•	
Standard of Evidence Provide the metrics u					Question Rank:
Assessor conclusio	ns:				Somewhat Important
Respondents		Responses		Response	
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
assigned	2	-	1		50%
assigned Question 200: Is there a set of estab State enterprise road	lished pe	received	s for the in	rate	50%
assigned Question 200: Is there a set of estat State enterprise road systems?	lished pe way infor	received	s for the in	rate	50%
assigned Question 200: Is there a set of estab State enterprise road systems? Standard of Evidend	blished pe way inform ce:	received	s for the in	rate	Question Rank:
assigned Question 200: Is there a set of estab State enterprise road systems? Standard of Evidence Provide the metrics u	blished pe way inform <b>:e:</b> sed.	received	s for the in	rate	
-	olished pe way inform <b>ce:</b> sed. <b>ns:</b> Department ty to link to Linking to	received erformance measure mation systems and not of Transportation roadway information the data records in o the various roadwa	s for the in other critic does not h systems a ne databas y systems	rate tegration of cal data ave performance and other critical se with common within the roadw	Question Rank: Very Important e measures for the data systems. or related records vay enterprise





Question Rank: Very Important

# Question 201:

Is there a set of established performance measures for the integration of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians (municipalities, MPOs, etc.) and other critical data systems?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the metrics used.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The Massachusetts Department of Transportation does not have performance measures for the integration of the roadway data maintained by regional and local custodians and other critical data systems.

Respondents 2	Responses	1 Response	50%
assigned	received	rate	





# **Citation / Adjudication**

An ideal citation tracking system, rarely found in any state, accounts for the status of every citation from the time of creation whether printed or generated electronically. The accounting requires an inventory that correctly knows the status of every document at all times without exception. For a paper system, a single citation form off the press would be listed in the inventory as one in a set with numbers [nnnnn through nnnnn] in book [nnnnn through nnnnn] in box [nnnnn through nnnnn] in the storehouse. When assigned to an enforcement agency, box [nnnnn through nnnnn] would contain that unused form now in agency [aaaaaaa]'s possession in the inventory. From there, the inventory would be updated with the assignment of the citation book to officer [oooo], and each ticket's issuance to an offender (or its status as voided or destroyed), its receipt at a court for as long as it takes for an adjudication, the results of the court adjudication, and the recording of convictions in the driver history file.

Most States have fragments of a complete citation tracking system. Massachusetts has such a system administered by the Merit Rating Board in the Registry of Motor Vehicles. There are pockets of delay in updating the status of each citation, but the system functions well and is currently incorporating electronic citations.

There is an opportunity for the State to develop and/or promote an electronic citation system. Such a system will increase the efficiency of the business processes associated with administering citations, and will result in more timely and accurate capture of the data.

Some opportunities exist for improving linkages among various system components – such as adjudications with both the vehicle and crash files, which could improve the efficiency of vehicle-based administrative suspensions and revocations, as well as to increase the ability of the data in the system to support research.

Massachusetts appears to have an effective, largely paper-based, citation system. There is an integrated case management system for the courts, and citations appear to be efficiently filed within this system. Dispositions are effectively recorded within the State driver history system. Appropriate access is provided to law enforcement and court personnel to the various electronic systems, which appear to be widely used with considerable success.

The following areas are noted as strengths:

An outstanding integrated case management system for the courts has received widespread acceptance and use.

Excellent use of electronic disposition reporting from the courts to the DMV, resulting in timely reporting of most dispositions is evident.

Good use of edit checks and validation rules to ensure data quality was clear.

Excellent use of traffic/criminal history and background information at the car has been experienced, potentially improving data quality and efficiency of enforcement.



# Question 202:

Is there a statewide system that provides real-time information on individuals' driving and criminal histories?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative description of the statewide system that provides realtime **Question Rank:** information on individuals' driving and criminal histories. Very Important

# Assessor conclusions:

The State has a statewide system that provides real-time information on individuals' driving and criminal histories.

Respondents 1	Responses 1	Response 100%	
assigned	received	rate	

# Question 203:

Do all law enforcement agencies, parole agencies, probation agencies, and courts within the State participate in and have access to a system providing real-time information on individuals driving and criminal histories?

### Standard of Evidence:

Name the groups that have real time access and describe the system that these agencies use to access driver or criminal histories, i.e., police dispatch, **Question Rank:** direct system access, telephone help desk.

# Assessor conclusions:

The response indicates that most of the requisite agencies and entities have access to the necessary components of the ALARS system. However, some courts apparently do not have access to driver history records.







Very Important



### Question 204:

Is there a statewide authority that assigns unique citation numbers?

### Standard of Evidence:

Identify the agency responsible and describe the protocols used to generate and assign unique citation numbers. Provide a copy of the relevant statute or gubernatorial order.

Question Rank: Very Important

# Assessor conclusions:

The Registry of Motor Vehicles (RMV) is the responsible agency for generating and issuing unique citation books and numbers. Each citation is uniquely numbered. Massachusetts uses a Uniform Citation, approved by the Administrative Justice of the District Court Department and the Registrar. Evidence reflects a Uniform Citation and the authorizing legislation for motor vehicle offenses has been verified.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 205: Are all citation dispose branch—tracked by t			de the judic	ial	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
If a statewide data tra citation dispositions a history file, note if def is managed through t violations report to th	are transm errals or he courts	nitted and posted. If dismissals are poste , indicate whether a	the system ed. If the sta	is the driver atewide system	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion All citation disposition of whether the citation	ns are trac				9

Respondents assigned 1	Responses received	1 Re	esponse rate	100%
---------------------------	-----------------------	------	-----------------	------



				ANA CO	
Question 206:					
Are final dispositions posted to the driver of			olution of a	ny appeals)	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a flow chart o are posted to the driv		port documenting h	ow all type	s of dispositions	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion The provided flow ch		v that final dispositio	ons are pos	ted to the driver o	data system.
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 207: Are the courts' case jurisdictions within th Standard of Eviden	e State (i			-	
Provide the number of detail which are inter system and if munici management system	operable. Dal or oth	Indicate if the Stat	e has a un	ified judicial	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The response indicate completed for all cour courts that are in pro	es that a rts. Howe	<b>.</b> .			
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response	100%



# Question 208: Is citation and adjudication data used for traffic safety analysis to identify problem locations, areas, problem drivers, and issues related to the issuance of citations, prosecution of offenders, and adjudication of cases by courts?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide an example analysis and describe the policy or enforcement actions **Question Rank:** taken as a result.

# Assessor conclusions:

Massachusetts has started using citation and adjudication data for traffic safety analysis, and the response cites a seat belt study to determine the extent to which courts are dismissing such cases.

Respondents 1 Responses assigned 1 received	1 Response rate	100%
---	--------------------	------

# Question 209:

Do the appropriate components of the citation and adjudication systems adhere to the National Crime Information Center (NCIC) data guidelines?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative statement detailing the systems and their adherence to the NCIC guidelines. If not, specify if a comparable guideline is being used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The State participates in NCIC and the appropriate components of the citation system therefore adhere to the NCIC data guidelines.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--







**Question Rank:** 

Less Important

Very Important





# Question Rank: Somewhat Important

# meet the Nlets guidelines.

Standard of Evidence:

Assessor conclusions:

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%

The State participates in Nlets and therefore the appropriate components of the citation system

# Question 213:

Question 212:

guidelines?

Do the appropriate portions of the citation and adjudication systems adhere to the National Law Enforcement Information Network (LEIN) guidelines?

Do the appropriate portions of the citation and adjudication systems adhere to the National Law Enforcement Telecommunications System (NLETS)

Provide a narrative statement detailing the systems and their adherence to

the NLETS guidelines. If not, specify if a comparable guideline is being used.

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative statement detailing the systems and their adherence to the LEIN guidelines. If not, specify if a comparable guideline is being used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The State is a participant in the LEIN and therefore the appropriate components of the citation system meet the LEIN guidelines.

Respondents	1	Responses	1	Response	100%
assigned	I	received	•	rate	10078







Somewhat Important

# Management? **Standard of Evidence:** Provide a narrative statement detailing the systems and their adherence to the Functional Requirement Standards for Traffic Court Case Management. If not, specify if a comparable guideline is being used. **Assessor conclusions:**

The MassCourts court management system adheres to the Functional Requirement Standards for Traffic Court Case Management.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	

# Question 215:

Question 214:

Do the appropriate portions of the citation and adjudication systems adhere to the NIEM Justice domain guidelines?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative statement detailing the systems and their adherence to the NIEM Justice domain guidelines. If not, specify if a comparable guideline is being used.

# Assessor conclusions:

The Civil Motor Vehicle Infraction interface between the Courts and the MRB does adhere to the NIEM Justice domain guidelines. A spreadsheet containing the XML path names for the CMVI inbound request is attached as evidence. The Criminal interface is not NIEM compliant.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	





**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important

Question Rank:

Somewhat

Important



				Entry O	
Question 216:					
Does the State use the records?	he Nationa	I Center for State C	Courts guid	delines for court	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a narrative s NCSC guidelines for being used.					Question Rank: Somewhat Important
According to the resp and meet the require Court continue to use	ments of la	aw enforcement and and goals establishe	d court sys	stems. The Mass National Center fo	achusetts Trial
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 217:					$\frown$
Does the State use th	he Global 、	Justice Reference A	Architectur	re (GRA)?	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a narrative s GRA guidelines. If no		<b>U U</b>			Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion It appears that GRA is .		I.			·



# Question 218:

Does the State have an impaired driving data tracking system that meets the specifications of NHTSA's Model Impaired Driving Records Information System (MIDRIS)?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative statement detailing the systems and their adherence to MIDRIS guidelines. If not, specify if a comparable guideline is being used.

# Assessor conclusions:

Massachusetts does not have an established impaired driving data tracking system, however, the State collects the necessary components to centralize DUI data. DUI data is collected by the MRB system and the RMV (including impaired driving violations). The State also has the ability to integrate its blood alcohol results from CJIS and reports generated from the Suspension Batch Adjudication system.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 219:					
Does the citation syste	em have	a data dictionary?			
Standard of Evidence	<b>:</b> :				
Provide the data dictio exists. If not, provide t management system.	-				Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	S:				
According to the respo CA-IDMS database so	•	•			,

CA-IDMS database software that includes an integrated data dictionary. Since the ALARS data dictionary is integrated with the database, changes to the database are linked with changes to the data dictionary. The data dictionary attachments evidence was clear.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	









Question Rank:





# Question 222:

Do the citation data dictionaries indicate the data fields that are populated through interface linkages with other traffic records system components?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide a list of data fields from populated through interface linkages with other traffic records system components.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The data dictionaries indicate the data fields that are linked to other records. EXHIBIT 18 is a data diagram of some of the linkages of citation record (MMVR-CITA) with other database records. For example, the violator name, address, and license information are not kept in the citation record. The citation record contains a foreign key that points to the linked person record (MMVR-PERS).

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 223:					
Do the courts' case definition for each da					
Standard of Evider	ice:				
Provide a list of Cas level courts and note data dictionary for ou court if they do not u	Question Rank: Very Important				
Assessor conclusi	ons:				
Identification of report submit/receive citation for the Courts is not and this data diction	h a data dictionary ata from ALARS				

provided.

RespondentsResponsesResponseassigned1received1100%
--







Question Rank: Very Important



**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important

# Question 224:

Do the courts' case management system data dictionaries clearly define all data fields?

### Standard of Evidence:

Use the data dictionaries provided in response to Question 223.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The response mostly meets the evidence requirement because the data dictionary records are contained in the database catalog and all fields are included. A sample page from the data dictionary is included along with a sample page from the electronic report dictionary.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	------	--

## Question 225:

Do the courts' case management system data dictionaries indicate the data fields populated through interface linkages with other traffic records system components?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide a list of data fields from populated through interface linkages with other traffic records system components.

Question Rank: Somewhat Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The courts' case management system data dictionaries do not indicate the data fields populated through interface linkages with other traffic records system components.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--





#### Question 226: Do the prosecutors' information systems have data dictionaries? Standard of Evidence: Provide a data dictionary for the State prosecutors' office (State level courts **Question Rank:** that handle the most traffic violations). Indicate whether local prosecutors Somewhat (cities, counties) have one or numerous types of data systems. Important Assessor conclusions: There are 6 different Massachusetts District Attorney's Offices (DAA). The individual DAA offices maintain their own data dictionaries. No data dictionary was provided. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate Question 227: Can the State track citations from point of issuance to posting on the driver file? Standard of Evidence: Provide a flow diagram documenting citation lifecycle process that identifies key stakeholders. Ensure that alternative flows are included (e.g., manual **Question Rank:** and electronic submission). Very Important Assessor conclusions: As stated in the answer to question 204, the RMV is responsible for printing and issuing citation books to Massachusetts law enforcement agencies and for assigning unique citation numbers. As a citation book is issued by the RMV to a police department, the receiving police department and book number are entered into the RMV citation audit records. Police officers are required to complete audit sheets for each citation in each book including citations that are destroyed or voided These audit sheets are returned to the RMV.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	



				And the second	
Question 228:					
Does the State measu lifecycle flow chart?	ure compli	iance with the proc	ess outline	ed in the citation	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a narrative de citation lifecycle proce guidance documents,	ess specifi	ied in the flow chai			Question Rank: Somewhat Important
The State measures p citations submitted to department to mail or violation, a citation co	ALARS. to deliver	MGL Chapter 90C , by the end of the	Section 2 sixth busir	requires the issu ness day after the	ing police
Racnondante		Responses		Response	
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
	1		1	-	100%
assigned	-	received	1	-	100%
assigned Question 229:	ack DUI ci	received	1	-	100%
assigned Question 229: Is the State able to tra	ack DUI ci a <b>e:</b> nat docum all key sta	received tations? hents the criminal a keholders, and inc	and admini	rate	100%
assigned Question 229: Is the State able to tra Standard of Evidence Provide a flow chart th processes, identifies a	ack DUI ci e: nat docum all key sta rative chai <b>ns:</b>	received tations? hents the criminal a keholders, and inc rges.	and admini ludes disp	strative DUI osition per the	Question Rank: Very Important
assigned Question 229: Is the State able to tra Standard of Evidenc Provide a flow chart th processes, identifies a criminal and administr Assessor conclusion	ack DUI ci ack DUI ci at docum all key sta rative char ns: a flowchar	received tations? hents the criminal a keholders, and inc rges. t is provided show	and admini ludes disp	rate istrative DUI osition per the	Question Rank: Very Important







# Question 233:

Does the State distinguish between the administrative handling of court payments in lieu of court appearances (mail-ins) and court appearances?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide a flow chart documenting the processing of administrative handling of court payments (mail-ins).

# Assessor conclusions:

Administrative handling of court payments in lieu of appearance are distinguished from court appearances. A Traffic citation with all civil offenses is called a payable citation in the MRB procedures because the violator may pay the assessment amount to the RMV. The violator may mail-in a payment to MRB, may pay over an Internet application, may pay by phone, or may pay at an RMV office. A traffic citation with one or more criminal offenses is called a criminal citation because the citation disposition is handled by a Massachusetts court. The court does not accept a mail-in payment for a traffic citation with one or more criminal offenses. The violator must appear in person at the district court with jurisdiction for the location where the violation occurred.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	

# Question 234:

Does the State track deferral and dismissal of citations?

# Standard of Evidence:

Question Rank: Provide a flow chart documenting the deferral and the dismissal of citations.

# Assessor conclusions:

Deferral and dismissal of citations are tracked. If a court officer that holds a hearing for a civil citation dismisses any or all the offenses on the citation, the dismissed dispositions are entered to the Court's MassCourt system and the MassCourt system electronically sends the dismissal dispositions to be applied to the RMV statewide citation database (ALARS). If a court judge that hears a criminal citation case dismisses any or all of the offenses on the criminal citation, the dismissed dispositions are entered to the Court's MassCourt system and the MassCourt system electronically sends the dismissal dispositions to be applied to the statewide citation database (ALARS).

Respondents assigned	1 Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
-------------------------	----------------------	--------------------	------





**Question Rank:** Somewhat Important



Somewhat

Important

Question 235: Are there State and/or local criteria for deferring or dismissing traffic citations and charges? Standard of Evidence: Question Rank: Provide the criteria for deferring or dismissing traffic citations and charges. Somewhat Assessor conclusions: Important There are State and local criteria for deferring or dismissing traffic citations and charges. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate Question 236: If the State purges its records, are the timing conditions and procedures documented? Standard of Evidence: Provide a narrative documenting whether or not the State purges records. If **Question Rank:** so, list the types of records the State purges and provide the criteria for doing Somewhat SO. Important Assessor conclusions: The State does not purge citations from its records. No purge has been applied since ALARS was installed in 1986. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate Question 237: Are the security protocols governing data access, modification, and release officially documented? Standard of Evidence: Provide the official security protocols governing data access, modification, Question Rank: and release. Somewhat Important Assessor conclusions: There are security protocols governing data access, modification, and release officially documented. Respondents Responses Response

1



received

1

assigned

100%

rate



Question 238:					
Is citation data linked carry out administrati interlock) and determ	ve actions	(e.g., suspension, I			
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Describe how citation means administrative					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ons:				
The attached evidence system (collects drive changes the dispositi citation amount due -	er informat on of the c	ion) and results in a citation/violation to r	a suspensio esponsible	on after the Adju	dication System
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 239:					
Is adjudication data li records and administ cancellation, interlock dispositions to the dri	rative action () to deterr	ons (e.g., suspensio	on, revocat	ion,	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide the results of information is used to charges and to post of	o collect ce	rtified driver record			Question Rank: Very Important
information is used to	o collect ce disposition	rtified driver records s to the driver file.	s and adm	inistrative	Very Important



(🚍)

Zuns

# **Question Rank:** Somewhat Important and carry out administrative actions (e.g., vehicle seizure, forfeiture, interlock **Question Rank:** Somewhat Important







# Question 240:

Is citation data linked with the vehicle file to collect vehicle information and carry out administrative actions (e.g., vehicle seizure, forfeiture, interlock)?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the results of a sample query and describe how the linked information is used to collect vehicle information and carry out administrative actions.

# Assessor conclusions:

Citation data are linked with the vehicle file to collect vehicle information and carry out administrative actions (e.g., vehicle seizure, forfeiture, interlock).

Respondents assigned	1 Responses received	1	Response rate	1 <b>00</b> %	

# Question 241:

Is adjudication data linked with the vehicle file to collect vehicle information mandates and supervision)?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide the results of a sample query and describe how the linked information is used to collect vehicle information and carry out administrative actions.

# Assessor conclusions:

Although adjudication data is not linked with the vehicle file to collect vehicle information and carry out administrative actions, ALARS appears to capture the necessary data elements needed to carry out such actions.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--

Question 242: Is citation data linked related to the crash?	with the c	crash file to docume	nt violatio	ns and charges	
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide the results of information is used to					Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				mportant
There does not appear citations.	ar to be ar	ny validation or linka	age betwe	en a Crash repor	t and issued
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 243:					
Is adjudication data li charges related to the		the crash file to do	cument vio	olations and	
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide the results of information is used to	•				Question Rank: Somewhat Important
	ne:				mportant
Assessor conclusio	113.				
Assessor conclusio Adjudication data are		d with the crash file.			







**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important

# **Question 244:**

Is there a set of established performance measures for the timeliness of the citation systems?

# Standard of Evidence:

If there is a statewide citation tracking system in the State, provide timeliness measures used. If there are two or more centralized citation tracking systems, provide timeliness measures for one of them.

### Assessor conclusions:

There is a time limit on the delivery of paper citations to the court. So presumably the citations that are not delivered within this deadline (6th business day after the citation was given) are tardy and can be measured as such. However, no time limit is indicated for the processing of the data into ALARS.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 245:					
Is there a set of estab citation systems?	olished pe	rformance measure	es for the a	ccuracy of the	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide accuracy me there are several citation one of them.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
The MRB traffic citation ALARS citation datable contain reject statistic (%) of total statewide is 0.9%. The rejected	ase. Exhi s for eacl rejects fo	bits 11 and 12 iden h police department or citations received	tified in the t and for all from all po	e answer to questi l police departmen plice departments	on 244 also nts. The percent in calendar 2012

corrected when possible.

Respondents 1 Responses 1 Response 100% assigned 1 received 1 rate	)
--	---



# **Question 246:**

Is there a set of established performance measures for the completeness of the citation systems?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide completeness measures for the statewide citation tracking system. If there are several citation tracking systems, provide completeness measures for one of them.

# Assessor conclusions:

There is a set of established performance measures for the completeness of the citation system.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--

# Question 247:

Is there a set of established performance measures for the uniformity of the citation systems?

# Standard of Evidence:

Provide uniformity measures for the statewide citation tracking system. If there are several citation tracking systems, provide uniformity measures for one of them.

Question Rank: Somewhat Important

## Assessor conclusions:

The response indicates that uniformity. All traffic citations issued by Massachusetts police must use the Massachusetts Uniform Citation form (See Exhibit 01) so all paper citations received from police departments are on this form. The other source of traffic citations is the court system, MassCourt, which uses standard electronic formats for transferring data to the MRB.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	1 received	rate	



**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat

Important

#### Question 248: Is there a set of established performance measures for the integration of the citation systems? Standard of Evidence: Provide integration measures for the statewide citation tracking system. If **Question Rank:** there are several citation tracking systems, provide integration measures for Somewhat one of them. Important Assessor conclusions: The overall system is well-integrated, and it doesn't seem to make sense to talk about a metric per se. As stated in the answer to question 202, the Registry of Motor Vehicles (RMV) maintains a statewide integrated database system (ALARS) that contains real-time information on individuals' driving histories. ALARS contains driver licensing records, vehicle registration records, traffic citation records, license and registration suspension records, at-fault accident records, and auto insurance records for registered vehicles. Respondents Responses Response 1 1 100% assigned received rate Question 249: Is there a set of established performance measures for the accessibility of the citation systems? Standard of Evidence: Provide accessibility measures for the statewide citation tracking system. If there are several citation tracking systems, provide accessibility measures **Question Rank:** for one of them. Less Important Assessor conclusions: The system is accessible, but performance measures were not provided. As stated in the answer to question 203, ALARS is connected to the Massachusetts Criminal Justice Information System (CJIS) network, to the Massachusetts State IP intranet network, to an Internet based VPN network, and to dedicated mainframe connections to a few large insurance companies.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--



				And the	
Question 250:					$\frown$
Is there a set of estab adjudication systems?	•	rformance measures	s for the t	timeliness of the	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide timeliness me If there are several ac measures for one of t	djudicatio	•		0,	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion There is no set of esta systems	-	performance measu	res for the	e timeliness of the	adjudication
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 251:					
Is there a set of estab adjudication systems?	-	rformance measure	s for the a	accuracy of the	
Standard of Evidence	:e:				
Provide accuracy mea If there are several ac measures for one of t	djudicatio				Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion There is no set of est system.		performance measu	res for th	e accuracy of the	adjudication
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%



Question 252:					
Is there a set of estat the adjudication syste	•	rformance measur	es for the co	ompleteness of	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide completenes system. If there are completeness measu	several ad	judication tracking			Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				
There is no set of es system.	tablished	performance meas	sures for the	completeness of	of the adjudication
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 253:					
Is there a set of estal adjudication systems		formance measure	es for the in	tegration of the	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide integration m If there are several a measures for one of	djudicatior		•	• •	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				
There is no set of es system.	tablished	performance meas	sures for the	integration of th	e adjudication
Respondents	1	Responses	1	Response	100%





				(Zynz)	
Question 254:					
n States that have an numbers, is informati dismissals) captured′	on on inte				
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide documentation argest law enforcement citations that are in the	ent agenc ne driver fi	ies and the numbe	r of dispos		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio Massachusetts issue (e.g., deferrals, dismi	s unique d	-	nd informa	tion on intermedi	ate dispositions
		•			
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
assigned	1	Responses	1	-	100%
assigned Question 255: Do the State's DUI tra	acking sys	Responses received	nal quality	control	100%
assigned Question 255: Do the State's DUI tra procedures to ensure	acking sys	Responses received	nal quality	control	100%
-	acking sys the accu ce: escription	Responses received	nal quality s of the dat uality contr	control a? ol measures for	Question Rank: Somewhat
assigned Question 255: Do the State's DUI tra procedures to ensure Standard of Evidend Provide a narrative de	acking sys the accur ce: escription ems and s	Responses received	nal quality s of the dat uality contr	control a? ol measures for	Question Rank:

Respondents 1 Responses assigned 1 received	1 Response rate	100%
--	--------------------	------





# EMS / Injury Surveillance

Massachusetts has all the components to form a comprehensive statewide injury surveillance system. The Massachusetts Ambulance Trip Record Information System (MATRIS) collects information on EMS runs. Information on emergency department visits and hospital discharges is collected by the Massachusetts Center for Health Information and Analysis (CHIA). Massachusetts Department of Health epidemiologists have access to these databases through a data use agreement with CHIA. The Erwin Hirsch State Trauma Registry collects and houses data on severe trauma cases throughout Massachusetts. The Massachusetts Department of Health Registry of Vital Records and Statistics compiles data on all deaths. These data system have been used in coordination to assess the burden of motor vehicle crashes in Massachusetts.

The Office of Emergency Medical Services, which is part of the Bureau of Healthcare Safety and Quality within the Massachusetts Department of Health oversees MATRIS under the Commonwealth's EMS statute. MATRIS is compliant with the NEMSIS 2.2.1 data standard. Agencies are required to submit data within 14 days of the event. If the incoming data pass the XML schema validation they are immediately available for analysis. Records are not rejected for erroneous or missing data but each record is given a validation score. Agencies are notified of common errors and training is developed to reduce the frequency of these issues.

MATRIS data are available to authorized users at the submitting agencies as well as other Department of Health sections that have signed data use agreements. MATRIS data have been provided to Injury Prevention, Injury Statistics, Stroke Prevention, and Schools programs. However, MATRIS data have yet to be analyzed in tandem with any other databases in the injury surveillance system. MATRIS has the ability to track the frequency and severity of injuries sustained by motor vehicle crash victims but this is activity is not regularly performed.

The emergency department, hospital discharge, and outpatient databases are collected by the Massachusetts Center for Health Information and Analysis (CHIA). Massachusetts Department of Health epidemiologists have access to these databases through a data use agreement with CHIA. When data are submitted a series of data validation and verification rules check all records. If more than 1% of records are rejected in a particular submission then the hospital is required to resubmit the file. To ensure quality data, hospitals receive midyear and yearend verification reports.

The emergency department, hospital discharge, and outpatient data are available for request by the public. These data sources are also available to authorized users within the Department of Health. These databases have been used to track the frequency and severity of motor vehicle crashes in several State publications, such as *The MA Special Emphasis Report: Traumatic Brain Injury, 2010* and *The 2009 Injury Data Book: Fatal and Nonfatal Injuries Among Massachusetts Residents.* 

The Erwin Hirsch State Trauma Registry collects data from all hospitals treating trauma patients. The trauma registry database conforms to the National Trauma Data Standard. Trauma data are required to be submitted within 75 days of the hospitalization. Data submissions undergo the same verification and validation methods as the other hospital databases. Submissions are





rejected if more than 1% of records fail the validation checks. Hospitals also receive detailed reports of all non-fatal errors generated during the submission process. Trauma registry managers have a number of detailed performance metrics to monitor the quality of incoming data and data quality reports are shared with the TRCC.

The trauma registry data are available to approved users within the Department of Health. Outside researchers may also apply to use the trauma registry data through IRBNet. It is currently being analyzed as part of an NIH funded disparities project. Severity of injuries can analyzed using a number of measures, such as the Glasgow Coma Scale (GCS), the Abbreviated Injury Scale (AIS), and the Injury Severity Score (ISS).

The Massachusetts Registry of Vital Records and Statistics collects death certificates on all deaths that occur within Massachusetts, as well as those occurring to residents outside of the State. Death certificate data are coded according to national guidelines set by the National Centers for Health Statistics (NCHS) for collecting death data. Cause-of-death information is classified in accordance with the ICD-10 standard. Death records are due by the tenth day of the month following the death. Data undergo a series of verification and validation checks. If an error is identified the record is sent back and flagged in the State system until the error is resolved. Quality control reviews are not conducted on the death certificate data.

Death certificate data are shared with the Injury Prevention Program and included in many of their reports and presentations such as The MA Special Emphasis Report: Traumatic Brain Injury, 2010 and The 2009 Injury Data Book: Fatal and Nonfatal Injuries Among Massachusetts Residents. Data are also available in aggregate form pending approval thro0ug a research and data access review process. The transition to an electronic reporting system has delayed the availability of newer data. Currently there is a two-year delay in the annual data set.

The death certificates database could become more useful by improving the electronic reporting system to produce timelier data. The validation score assigned by MATRIS could be used to begin rejecting records with an unacceptable number of errors. An interface with MATRIS would increase the accuracy of the data in the trauma registry and an interface between the hospital databases and the vital records system would improve utility. The TRCC could benefit from data quality reports of all injury surveillance data systems.

Massachusetts has a robust injury surveillance system which captures data on motor vehicle crash outcomes from all phases of the injury pyramid: EMS, emergency department, outpatient, hospital discharge, trauma registry, and death certificates.


Does the injury surve	eillance sy	stem include hospita	al discharg	ge data?	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a sample rep	port using	hospital discharge d	lata.		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The MDPH uses emerged fact book.		epartment data and l	hospital di	scharge data to o	compile their injury
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
•	2	-	1	-	50%

fact book. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate

data?	
Standard of Evidence:	
Provide a sample report using emergency department data.	Question Rank: Very Important

Responses

Does the injury surveillance system include emergency department (ED)

received

Assessor conclusions: The MDPH uses emergency department data and hospital discharge data to compile their injury

## Question 256: Does the injury surveillance system include EMS data?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample report using EMS data.

2

## **Assessor conclusions:**

Respondents

Question 257:

Question 258:

assigned

EMS data is collected individually. While it is available for use by the injury surveillance system, it is not currently used in combination with other injury surveillance data systems.

1





**Question Rank:** Very Important

50%

Response

rate

				Entry Co	
Question 259:					
Does the injury surve	illance sy	stem include trauma	registry	data?	
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide a sample rep	ort using	trauma registry data		-	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio The trauma registry c department and hosp	lata warel				
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 260:					
Does the injury surve	illance sy	stem include rehabili	tation da	ta?	
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide a sample rep	ort using	rehabilitation data.		_	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	-				very important
The MA injury surveil	lance sys	tem does not include	e rehabilit	ation data.	
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 261:					
Does the injury surve	illance sy	stem include vital red	cords dat	a?	
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide a sample rep	ort using	vital records data.		-	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio Vital statistics data is hospital discharge inf	included		k along w	ith emergency de	• •
nospital discharge in					





## Question 262: Does the injury surveillance system include other data?

## Standard of Evidence:

List any other databases or sources included in the injury surveillance system and provide a sample report using data from each of these sources. Additional data resources may include medical examiner reports, payer-related databases, traumatic brain injury registry, and spinal cord injury registry.

## Assessor conclusions:

Outpatient observation stay data is also used to generate the annual injury fact book.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%

#### **Question 263:**

Does the EMS system track the frequency, severity, and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes in the State?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide the most recent motor vehicle-related incident counts for the EMS system, any injury severity categorizations applied, and the provider's primary impression (if applicable).

Question Rank: Very Important

## Assessor conclusions:

MATRIS, can be used to determine the frequency and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes in MA as evidenced in the supporting documentation ("MATRIS MVC by Primary Impression 2013") and documentation attached to a subsequent question ("Motorcycle incidents by day time"). The individual data elements collected could be used to determine injury severity but assignment of severity is not being done at this time. For this reason, the rating is "Partially Meets."

Respondents 2 Responses assigned 2 received	1 Response rate	50%
---	--------------------	-----





#### Question 264: Does the emergency department data track the frequency, severity, and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes in the State? Standard of Evidence: Provide the most recent motor vehicle-related incident counts for the emergency department data, any injury severity categorizations applied **Question Rank:** (e.g., Abbreviated Injury Score, Injury Severity Scale), and principal Very Important diagnosis. Assessor conclusions: Emergency Department (ED) data is routinely used by the MA Dept. of Public Health Injury Surveillance and Injury Prevention and Control programs to track the frequency and nature of injuries from MVC for persons treated in MA acute care hospitals. Evidence provided ("Q264-ED Counts & TBI" and "Q264-ED Principal Diagnoses") supports the State's ability to track the frequency and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes. MDPH epidemiologists do not calculate injury severity scores (AIS or ISS); it is for this reason, the rating is "Partially Meets." Respondents Response Responses 2 1 50% assigned received rate Question 265: Does the hospital discharge data track the frequency, severity, and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes in the State? Standard of Evidence: Provide the most recent motor vehicle-related incident counts for the hospital discharge data, any injury severity categorizations applied (e.g., Abbreviated **Question Rank:** Injury Score, Injury Severity Scale), and principal diagnosis. Very Important Assessor conclusions: PHospital discharge data is routinely used by the MA Dept. of Public Health Injury Surveillance and Injury Prevention and Control programs to track the frequency and nature of injuries from MVC for persons treated in MA acute care hospitals. Evidence provided ("Q265-HD Counts & TBI" and "Q265-HD Principal Diagnoses") supports the State's ability to track the frequency and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes. MDPH epidemiologists do not calculate

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

injury severity scores (AIS or ISS); it is for this reason, the rating is "Partially Meets."





#### Question 266: Does the trauma registry data track the frequency, severity, and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes in the State? Standard of Evidence: Provide the most recent motor vehicle-related incident counts for the trauma registry data, any injury severity categorizations applied (e.g., Abbreviated **Question Rank:** Injury Score, Injury Severity Scale), and principal diagnosis. Very Important Assessor conclusions: The trauma registry tracks the frequency of motor vehicle crashes admitted to a trauma center and calculates the ISS scores for each patient. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate Question 267: Does the vital records data track the frequency, severity, and nature of injuries sustained in motor vehicle crashes in the State? Standard of Evidence: Provide the most recent motor vehicle-related incident counts from the vital Question Rank: records data and the cause of death. Very Important Assessor conclusions: Vital records data are routinely used by the Department of Public Health to track the frequency of motor vehicle related deaths among MA residents. Respondents Responses Response 1 2 50%

received



assigned

rate

Is the EMS data avail	lable for a	nalysis and used to	o identify p	oblems,	
evaluate programs, a	nd allocat	e resources?			
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide a sample rep that utilized EMS data resources.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
EMS data are used for data for motorcycle s		-		e attached showin	ng the use of EMS
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 269:					
Is the emergency dep problems, evaluate p				used to identify	
	rograms, a			used to identify	
problems, evaluate p	rograms, a ce: port or nari cy departr	and allocate resour rative description o ment data to identif	rces? f a highway	/ safety project	Question Rank: Very Important
problems, evaluate p Standard of Evidend Provide a sample rep that utilized emergen	rograms, a ce: oort or nari cy departr resources ons: ent and ho	and allocate resour rative description o ment data to identif spital discharge da	rces? f a highway y a probler ta are regu	/ safety project n, evaluate a larly used to direc	Very Important







#### Is the hospital discharge data available for analysis and used to identify problems, evaluate programs, and allocate resources? Standard of Evidence: Provide a sample report or narrative description of a highway safety project that utilized hospital discharge data to identify a problem, evaluate a **Question Rank:** program, or allocate resources. Very Important Assessor conclusions: Emergency department and hospital discharge data are regularly used to direct injury prevention priorities and allocate resources. Evidence showing the use of these data was provided. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate Question 271: Is the trauma registry data available for analysis and used to identify problems, evaluate programs, and allocate resources? Standard of Evidence: Provide a sample report or narrative description of a highway safety project that utilized trauma registry data to identify a problem, evaluate a program, or **Question Rank:** allocate resources. Very Important Assessor conclusions: The trauma registry has been used extensively for analysis. Multiple abstracts have been produced using this data as demonstrated by the evidence provided. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50%

received



assigned

Question 270:

rate

# Question 272:

Is the vital records data available for analysis and used to identify problems, evaluate programs, and allocate resources?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample report or narrative description of a highway safety project that utilized vital records data to identify a problem, evaluate a program, or allocate resources (e.g., research in support of helmet or GDL legislation).

## Assessor conclusions:

Vital records data has been used for analysis as evidenced in the attached report comparing fatal and non-fatal motor vehicle crashes over the last decade.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 273:		C compliant statewi		-	
Does the State have Standard of Evidence		S-compliant statewid	de databas	;e ?	
Demonstrate submiss any relevant State sta detailing the State's e	atutes or i	regulations. If not co	mpliant, pr		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				
MATRIS is compliant	with NEN	ASIS 2.2.1. A data d	lictionary h	as been provideo	d.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important



Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Assessor conclusio The State's trauma re attached.		abase is compliant v	with NTD	B standards. A da	ata dictionary is
Provide the trauma re regulations.		a dictionary and any	relevant	State statutes or	Question Rank: Very Important
Standard of Evidend	e:				
Does the State's trau Data Standards?	-	y database adhere	to the Na	tional Trauma	
Question 275:					
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Assessor conclusio The Center for Health data elements (e.g., r collected. A comprehe and the ED data.	Informati evenue co	odes) but other data	element	s (e.g., Admissior	Source) are not
Provide the data diction hospital discharge da pr regulations.					Question Rank: Very Important
Standard of Evidend	e:				
conform to the most r					
unes me states eme	raency ae	epartment and hospi	tal discha	arde data	



( 🚍 )

				(Junit)	
Question 276: Are Abbreviated Inju from the State emerg vehicle crash patient	gency depa				
Standard of Eviden Provide a distributior available.		nd ISS scores for the	e most rece	ent year	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion Hospital discharge d and are used to calcon submissions from all	ata and El ulate the I	SS for submissions	from traum		in the warehouse
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Are Abbreviated Inju from the State traum Standard of Eviden Provide a distributior available.	a registry	for motor vehicle cr	ash patient	s?	Question Rank:
Assessor conclusion The ISS score is calc		all patients include	d in the tra	uma registry.	Very Important
		all patients include Responses received	d in the tra	uma registry. Response rate	Very Important 50%
The ISS score is cald Respondents assigned Question 278: Does the State EMS for motor vehicle cra	2 database sh patients	Responses received	1	Response rate	
The ISS score is cald Respondents assigned Question 278: Does the State EMS for motor vehicle cra Standard of Eviden Provide a distributior	database sh patients ce:	Responses received	1 v Coma Sca	Response rate	50%
The ISS score is cald Respondents assigned Question 278: Does the State EMS	database sh patients ce: n of GCS s ailable.	Responses received	1 v Coma Sca	Response rate	50%



Question 279:					$\frown$
Does the State traum for motor vehicle cras			w Coma Sc	ale (GCS) data	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a distribution most recent year ava		cores for motor ve	hicle crash	patients for the	Question Rank: Less Important
Assessor conclusion The trauma registry r distribution of 2010 G	outinely co		their subse	et of patients. A r	eport showing the
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 280:					
Are there State private	cy and cor	nfidentiality laws th	at supersec	le HIPAA?	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide the applicabl interpreted—including sharing within the Sta	g the ident	tification of situatio	ns that may	impede data	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The Fair Information specific legal authorit HIPAA requirements.	Practices by or conse				
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



 $(\blacksquare$ 

(•~

(Zwa

3

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide the data dictionary including, at a minimum, the variable names and definitions.

## Question Rank: Very Important

## Assessor conclusions:

The "MA Ambulance Trip Record Information System (MATRIS) Data Dictionary" was provided as evidence for this response.

Respondents 2 Responses assigned 2 received	1 Response rate	50%
---	--------------------	-----

## Question 282:

Does the EMS system have formal documentation that provides a summary dataset—characteristics, values, limitations and exceptions, whether submitted or user created—and how it is collected, managed, and maintained?

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide a user's manual or other form of documentation of the EMS data collection system. Such documentation should include a list of the dataset's variables and a description of how the data is collected, managed and maintained.

Assessor conclusions: The MATRIX data dictionary and Administrative Requirement document provide information on the EMS dataset and it's policies.

Respondents 2 Responses received	1 Response rate	50%
----------------------------------	--------------------	-----







#### **Question 283:**

Does the emergency department dataset have a formal data dictionary?

#### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the data dictionary including, at a minimum, the variable names and definitions.

Question Rank: Very Important

#### Assessor conclusions:

The Center for Health Information and Analysis maintain a data dictionary for their Emergency Department Databases. The FY2011 version was provided.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

## Question 284:

Does the emergency department dataset have formal documentation that provides a summary dataset—characteristics, values, limitations and exceptions, whether submitted or user created—and how it is collected, managed, and maintained?



Question Rank: Very Important

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide the documentation.

#### Assessor conclusions:

The "FY:2011 Outpatient Hospital Emergency Department Database Documentation Manual" was provided as evidence for this response. A link within the data dictionary was to "Outpatient Emergency Department Visit Data, Electronic Records Submission Specification, December 2010." The Records Submission Specification document contains the data element characteristics, values, limitations and exceptions, whether submitted or user created.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--





## Does the hospital discharge dataset have a formal data dictionary? Standard of Evidence: Provide the data dictionary including, at a minimum, the variable names and **Question Rank:** definitions. Very Important Assessor conclusions: The CHIA maintains a data dictionary for the hospital discharge database. A copy has been provided. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate **Question 286:** Does the hospital discharge dataset have formal documentation that provides a summary dataset-characteristics, values, limitations and exceptions, whether submitted or user created-and how it is collected, managed, and maintained? Standard of Evidence: Provide the documentation. Question Rank: Very Important Assessor conclusions: The "FY:2011 Inpatient Hospital Discharge Database Documentation Manual" was provided as evidence for this response. A link within the data dictionary was to "Hospital Inpatient Discharge Data, Electronic Records Submission Specification, May 2011." The Records Submission Specification document contains the data element characteristics, values, limitations and exceptions, whether submitted or user created.

Respondents assigned2Responses received1Response rate50	<b>i0%</b>
--	------------



Question 285:

				$\bigcirc$	$\overline{}$
/ hav	e a formal data	dictionary?			
ary in	cluding, at a mi	inimum, the	variable	e names and	Question Rank: Very Important
: traur	na registry was	provided.			
2	Response receive	· · · · · ·		Response rate	50%
acter	aset have forma istics, values, li			•	
er cre	eated—and how				
					Question Rank:
ion.					Question Rank: Very Important
ion.		w it is collect	ed, mai	naged, and	Very Important
ion.	eated—and hov	w it is collect elements in a es 1	ed, mai	naged, and	Very Important
ion. : ry inc	eated—and how ludes the data o <b>Response</b>	w it is collect elements in a es 1	ed, mai	naged, and ance with NTI <b>Response</b>	Very Important DB standards.
ion. : ry inc 2	eated—and how ludes the data o <b>Response</b>	w it is collect elements in a es 1 ed 1	ed, mai	naged, and ance with NTI <b>Response</b>	Very Important DB standards.
ion. : ry inc 2	eated—and how ludes the data o Response receive	w it is collect elements in a es 1 ed 1	ed, mai	naged, and ance with NTI <b>Response</b>	Very Important DB standards.
ion. : y inc 2 /sterr	eated—and how ludes the data o Response receive	w it is collect elements in a es 1 ed 1	ed, mai	naged, and ance with NTI Response rate	Very Important DB standards.
ion. : y inc 2 ystem ary in	eated—and how ludes the data of <b>Response</b> <b>receive</b> h have a formal cluding, at a mi	w it is collect elements in a es 1 data dictiona inimum, the s	ed, mai	ance with NTI Response rate	Very Important DB standards. 50%





Question Rank: Very Important

## Question 290:

Does the vital records system have formal documentation that provides a summary dataset—characteristics, values, limitations and exceptions, whether submitted or user created—and how it is collected, managed, and maintained?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide the documentation.

## Assessor conclusions:

The "Commonwealth of Massachusetts Death Tape Format - 1999" document is the formal documentation that provides data element characteristics, values, limitations and exceptions.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 291: Is there a single entit agencies?	y that coll	ects and compiles	data from th	ne local EMS	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Identify the State age submitted.	ency or thi	ird party to which th	e EMS data	a is initially	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion The Office of Emerge		cal Services collec	ts and comp	oiles EMS data ir	n the State.
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 292:					
Is there a single entit department visits from		-	data on em	ergency	
	<u></u>				
Standard of Eviden					
Standard of Evident Identify the State age department visits is in	ency or thi		ie data on e	emergency	Question Rank: Very Important
Identify the State age	ency or thi nitially sub ons: h Informat	tion and Analysis co			Very Important



## Question 293:

Is there a single entity that collects and compiles data on hospital discharges from individual hospitals?

## Standard of Evidence:

Identify the State agency or third party to which the data on hospital discharges is initially submitted.

## Assessor conclusions:

The Center for Health Information and Analysis collects and compiles emergency department and hospital discharge data for the State.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1 Response rate	50%
-------------------------	---	--------------------	--------------------	-----

## Question 294:

Is there a process flow diagram that outlines the EMS system's key data process flows, including inputs from other systems?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide the flow diagram. Alternatively, provide a narrative description of the EMS data process flows from dispatch to submission of the report to the State EMS repository.

#### Assessor conclusions:

A process flow diagram for the EMS data system was provided.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

|--|

#### Question 295: Is there a process flow diagram that outlines the emergency department data's key data process flows, including inputs from other systems? Standard of Evidence: Provide the flow diagram. Alternatively, provide a narrative description of the emergency department data process flows from patient arrival to submission **Question Rank:** of the uniform billing data to the State repository. Very Important Assessor conclusions: MA does not have a process flow diagram that outlines the emergency department data's key data process flows, including inputs from other systems. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate Question 296: Is there a process flow diagram that outlines the hospital discharge data's key data process flows, including inputs from other systems? Standard of Evidence: Provide the flow diagram. Alternatively, provide a narrative description of the hospital discharge data process flows from patient arrival to submission of Question Rank: the uniform billing data to the State repository. Very Important Assessor conclusions: MA does not have a process flow diagram that outlines the hospital discharge data's key data process flows, including inputs from other systems. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate



Respondents	2	Responses	1	Response	50%
Assessor conclusio A description of the p	-	s for submitting EM	S patient c	are reports was p	provided.
Provide a copy of the narrative describing the	ne procec		ectronic fili	ng or a brief	Question Rank: Less Important
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Are there separate pr care reports?	ocedures	for paper and elect	tronic filing	of EMS patient	
Question 298:					
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
A flow chart was prov	-	he State's trauma re	egistry data	ì.	
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
Provide the flow diagr hospital discharge da of the trauma data to	ta proces	s flows, from traum			Question Rank: Very Important
Standard of Evidence					
process flows, includi	ng inputs	from other systems	5?		
		n that outlines the tr		stry's key data	



(•••

(Zwa

T)

Provide a copy of the for collecting, error-ch Assessor conclusio Documents describing INET were provided.	ns:	Ū.	procedures		Very Important information to
for collecting, error-ch	Ũ	id submitting traum	0,		very important
	procedure			lata (	Question Rank:
Standard of Evidend	;e:				
Question 300: Does the trauma regised iting, error checking	-	•	dures for co	ollecting,	
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Assessor conclusio As reported by the Sta 1% of discharge recon for correction/resubm	ate, "CHIA rds fail the				
of collecting, editing a discharge data to the	and submit	tting emergency de		nd hospital	Question Rank: Very Important
Provide a copy of the					
Provide a copy of the	nt and hos				



 $\left( \right)$ 





				(Entry)	
Question 303:					
Are there documente emergency departme correction and resub	ents for qu	ality assurance and			
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a copy of the process for returning correction and resub	data to th				Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ons:				
Field edit reports are opportunity to correc	•	-			This oliers the
Respondents	2	Responses	1	Response	50%
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
assigned	2		1	-	50%
-	ed procedu Is for qual	received	spital disc	rate	50%
assigned Question 304: Are there documente the reporting hospita	ed procedu Is for qual mission)?	received	spital disc	rate	50%
assigned Question 304: Are there documente the reporting hospita correction and resub	ed procedu ls for qual mission)? <b>ce:</b> e procedur	received ures for returning ho ity assurance and in	ospital disc nprovemen ve describi	rate harge data to nt (e.g., ing the process	50%
assigned Question 304: Are there documented the reporting hospita correction and resub Standard of Eviden Provide a copy of the for returning data to the	ed procedu ls for quali mission)? <b>ce:</b> e procedur the reporti	received ures for returning ho ity assurance and in	ospital disc nprovemen ve describi	rate harge data to nt (e.g., ing the process	Question Rank:
assigned Question 304: Are there documente the reporting hospita correction and resub Standard of Eviden Provide a copy of the	ed procedu ls for quali mission)? ce: e procedur the reporti ons: sent to th	received ures for returning ho ity assurance and in res or a brief narration ing hospitals for corr he hospitals after eac	ospital disc nprovement ve describit rection and ch submiss	rate harge data to nt (e.g., ing the process d resubmission.	Question Rank: Very Important



Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Assessor conclusion A narrative was provided the death certificate	ided descr				a are coded from
Provide a copy of the for returning data to resubmission.	the reporti				Question Rank: Very Important
Standard of Eviden					
Question 306: Are there documenter records agency for q resubmission)?					
Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	1	Response rate	33.3%
Assessor conclusion There are procedure resubmission. It is un that generates feedb	s for return	ese procedures are	e documente	•	
Provide a copy of the for returning data to resubmission.	the reporti				Question Rank: Very Important
Standard of Eviden					
Are there documenter trauma center for qu resubmission)?					
Question 305:				- the second second	



(



Very Important

## Question 307:

Is aggregate EMS data available to outside parties (e.g., universities, traffic safety professionals) for analytical purposes?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide a copy of the data access policy, data use agreement, or link to appropriate data access website. Alternatively provide a brief description of **Question Rank:** how outside parties may obtain access to the EMS data for analytical purposes.

## Assessor conclusions:

Outside parties may request aggregated EMS data through requests submitted to the OEMS. Each request is handled on an individual basis.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 308:					
Is aggregate emergen universities, traffic safe					
Standard of Evidence	<del>)</del> :				
Provide a copy of the of appropriate data access how outside parties may for analytical purposes	ss webs ay obtai	ite. Alternatively pro	ovide a bri	ef description of	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion					
An application for use levels of access, base					was provided. Six
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%







## Question 311:

Is aggregate vital records data available to outside parties (e.g., universities, traffic safety professionals) for analytical purposes?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide a copy of the data access policy, data use agreement, or link to appropriate data access website. Alternatively provide a brief description of **Question Rank:** how outside parties may obtain access to the vital records data for analytical Very Important purposes.

## Assessor conclusions:

Vital records data are not available through regular reports but can be 'ordered'. All requests for aggregate data go through a research and data access review and approval process.

Respondents assigned	3	Responses received	2	Response rate	66.7%
Question 312: Is there an interface	•	e EMS data and em	ergency d	epartment and	
hospital discharge da Standard of Eviden					
Provide a narrative d and the emergency of provide the applicabl	departmer	nt and hospital disch			Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				
There is no current ir	nterface b	etween the EMS an	d hospital	databases.	
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%







				ANY CO	
Question 313: Is there an interface b	netween t	he EMS data and th	e trauma	registry data?	
Standard of Evidend	;e:				
Provide a narrative de and the trauma regist exchange agreement	ry data. If				Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio The description provid An interfaces involves this time.	ded show				
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 314:					
Is there an interface b	etween tl	he vital statistics and	d hospital	discharge data?	
Standard of Evidend	:e:				
Provide a narrative de and hospital discharg exchange agreement	e data. If				Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio While vital statistics a the the systems at thi	nd hospita	al discharge data ar	e integrate	ed, there is not an	interface between



Standard of Evidence:       Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which automated       Question Rank:         Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which automated       Question Rank:         acceptable values and is logically consistent among fields.       Question Rank:         Assessor conclusions:       A list of rules and validation 'points' was provided for use in the automated edit check process.         Respondents assigned       2       Responses received       1       Response rate       50%         Question 316:       Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?       Question Rank: Somewhat Important         Standard of Evidence:       Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database.       Question Rank: Somewhat Important         Assessor conclusions:       Assessor conclusions:       Standard of Evidence:       Standard of Evidence:	Question 315: Are there automated data falls within a ran among data elements	ge of acce				
Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which automated edit checks and validation rules ensure entered data falls within the range of acceptable values and is logically consistent among fields.       Question Rank: Very Important         Assessor conclusions:       A list of rules and validation 'points' was provided for use in the automated edit check process.       Seeson conclusions:       A list of rules and validation 'points' was provided for use in the automated edit check process.         Respondents assigned       2       Responses received       1       Response rate       50%         Question 316:       Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?       Question Rank: Somewhat Important         Standard of Evidence:       Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database.       Question Rank: Somewhat Important	among data elements	5 !				
edit checks and validation rules ensure entered data falls within the range of acceptable values and is logically consistent among fields.Question Rank: Very ImportantAssessor conclusions: A list of rules and validation 'points' was provided for use in the automated edit check process.A list of rules and validation 'points' was provided for use in the automated edit check process.Respondents assigned2Responses received1Response rate50%Question 316: Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?ImportantStandard of Evidence: 	Standard of Evidence	ce:				
A list of rules and validation 'points' was provided for use in the automated edit check process.Respondents assigned2Responses received1Response rate50%Question 316: Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?Image: Comparison of the state of t	edit checks and validation	ation rules	ensure entered da	ita falls with		•••••
Respondents assigned2Responses received1Response rate50%Question 316: Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?Image: Comparison of the term of the term of the term of the term of the term of term	Assessor conclusio	ons:				
assigned2receivedrate50%Question 316:Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?Image: Control staff Generation 2Standard of Evidence:Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database.Question Rank: Somewhat Important	A list of rules and vali	idation 'poi	nts' was provided	for use in th	ne automated ed	it check process.
Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity? <b>Standard of Evidence:</b> Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database. <b>Question Rank:</b> Somewhat Important	Respondents	-	Responses		Response	
Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity? <b>Standard of Evidence:</b> Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database. <b>Question Rank:</b> Somewhat Important	-	2		1	•	50%
<ul> <li>working with the statewide EMS database in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?</li> <li>Standard of Evidence:</li> <li>Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database.</li> <li>Question Rank: Somewhat Important</li> </ul>	assigned	2		1	•	50%
Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database. Question Rank:	assigned Question 316:		received	1	rate	50%
state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide EMS database.	assigned Question 316: Is limited state-level of working with the state	correction a	received	to amend	ntrol staff obvious errors	50%
Assessor conclusions:	assigned Question 316: Is limited state-level of working with the state and omissions without	correction a ewide EMS ut returning	received	to amend	ntrol staff obvious errors	50%
	assigned Question 316: Is limited state-level of working with the state and omissions without Standard of Evidence Provide the formal me state-level correction	correction a ewide EMS at returning ce: ethodology authority is	received authority granted to database in order the report to the c	to amend originating e rocess by w	rate ntrol staff obvious errors entity?	Question Rank: Somewhat

All corrections to the transport report must be made at the ambulance service level.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--











				AND TO	
Question 321:					
Are there uniformity p system managers and			d to the n	eeds of EMS	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a complete lis system and explain he decision-making.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion Uniformity is driven by collection system.		of the drop down lis	ts and va	lidation edits built	into the EMS data
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 322:					
Are there integration p system managers and			ed to the	needs of EMS	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a complete lis system and explain he decision-making.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	ns:				
The data collection sy surveillance data syst measures reported (i.	ems be c	ollected. However, t	there are	no specific integra	ation performance
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



assigned

				Envis 0	
Question 323:					
Are there accessibilit system managers an			ored to the	e needs of EMS	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a complete li system and explain h decision-making.					Question Rank: Very Important
Multiple performance		urrent status was			
Respondents assigned	2 and its ci	Responses	1	Response rate	50%
Respondents assigned		Responses		-	50%
Respondents assigned Question 324: Has the State establi	2 shed nume	Responses received	1	rate	50%
Respondents assigned Question 324: Has the State establi EMS system perform	2 shed nume ance meas	Responses received	1	rate	50%
Respondents	2 shed nume ance meas ce: eric goals a	Responses received eric goals—perforr sure? and related perforr	1 nance met	rate	Question Rank: Somewhat
Respondents assigned Question 324: Has the State establi EMS system perform Standard of Evidence Provide specific num	2 shed nume ance meas ce: eric goals a ed by the S ons:	Responses received	1 nance met	rics—for each	Question Rank: Somewhat Important



## 176 | Page

## Question 325:

Is there performance reporting for the EMS system that provides specific timeliness, accuracy, and completeness feedback to each submitting entity?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample report, list of receiving agencies, and specify frequency of issuance.

## Assessor conclusions:

The Ambulance Run Data Report in MATRIS provides feedback on completeness, accuracy, and timeliness. The Data Quality Report, created for each imported file, summarizes the validation errors encountered and guides services to address the most frequent errors

Respondents assigned	2 Responses received	1 Response rate	50%
-------------------------	----------------------	--------------------	-----

## Question 326:

Are high frequency errors used to update EMS system training content, data collection manuals, and validation rules?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which high frequency errors are used to update EMS system training content, data collection manuals, and validation rules.

## Assessor conclusions:

MATRIS Data Quality Workgroup was created from providers across the State and uses multiple reports (data quality report, ambulance run data report, QA/QI report) to identify chronic errors and to develop a plan for upgrading the rules and educating the ambulance services.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

**Question Rank:** 

Very Important









				(Find the second	
Question 330: Are EMS data quality available to the State		nent reports produc	ed regula	arly and made	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide a sample qua transmission to the St			specify fr	equency of	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio EMS data quality repo		rovided to the TRC	C upon re	equest.	·
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 331: Are there automated data falls within a ran among data elements Standard of Evidence	ge of acce ?				
Provide the formal me edit checks and valida acceptable values an	ation rules	s ensure entered da	ta falls w		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio The Center for Health fields.		ion and Analysis ru	ns a serie	es of edit checks o	n the submitted
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%





#### Question 332:

Is limited state-level correction authority granted to quality control staff working with the statewide emergency department and hospital discharge databases in order to amend obvious errors and omissions without returning the report to the originating entity?



Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which limited state-level correction authority is granted to quality control staff working with the statewide emergency department and hospital discharge databases.

Question Rank: Somewhat Important

Very Important

## Assessor conclusions:

Correction would be possible at the state-level, but the CHIA relies on local agencies to make corrections.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	received	rate	

#### Question 333:

Are there formally documented processes for returning rejected emergency department and hospital discharge records to the collecting entity and tracking resubmission to the statewide emergency department and hospital discharge databases?

## Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which rejected emergency department and hospital discharge records are returned to the **Question Rank:** collecting agency and tracked through resubmission to the statewide emergency department and hospital discharge databases.

## Assessor conclusions:

The Center for Health Information and Analysis tracks the data submission process. The database manual is provided.

Respondents	1 Responses	1 Response	100%
assigned	1 received	rate	




Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--



Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a complete I emergency department these measures are	ent and hos	spital discharge dat	tabases an		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				
The State describes				•	Errors in excess of
the 1% threshold are	e returned f	or correction and re	esubmissio	n.	
Respondents	1	Responses	1	Response	100%
assigned	-	received	-	rate	
Question 337:					$\frown$
Are there uniformity					
Are there uniformity emergency departme					
Are there uniformity					
Are there uniformity emergency departme users?	ent and hos				
Are there uniformity emergency departme users? Standard of Eviden	ent and hos ce:	spital discharge dat	abase mar	agers and data	
Are there uniformity emergency department users? Standard of Eviden Provide a complete I	ent and hos <b>ce:</b> ist of unifor	spital discharge dat rmity performance	abase mar measures f	agers and data	Question Rank:
Are there uniformity emergency departme users? Standard of Eviden	ent and hos <b>ce:</b> ist of unifor ent and hos	spital discharge dat rmity performance i spital discharge dat	abase mar measures f abases an	agers and data	Question Rank: Very Important

# **Question 336:**

Are there completeness performance measures tailored to the needs of emergency department and hospital discharge database managers and data users?

### St

### Assessor conclusions:

Submission guidelines are designed to promote uniformity but no specific performance measures were provided.

Respondents assigned1Responses received1Response rate	100%
--	------





				AND TO	
Question 338:					
Are there integration p emergency departmen users?					
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a complete lis emergency department these measures are u	nt and ho	ospital discharge data	abases a		Question Rank: Very Important
The submission guide Records Submission s emergency department specific performance Respondents	Specifica nt data p measure	ations" for inpatient, o provides integration al	utpatien pility betv	t observation, and	outpatient however, a list of
assigned	1	received	1	rate	100%
Question 339:					
Are there accessibility emergency departmenusers?					
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a complete lis emergency department these measures are u	nt and he	ospital discharge data	abase an		Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion No accessibility meas data.		re available for emer	gency de	partment and hos	oital discharge



Question 340:					
Has the State establisemergency departme measure?		<b>v</b> .			
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide specific nume attribute as determine			nance mea	sures for each	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ons:				
The State has not est hospital discharge da		specific performanc	ce measures	s for the emerge	ncy department or
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 341:					
Is there performance discharge databases completeness feedba	that provid	des specific timelin	ess, accura		
Standard of Evidend	ce:				
Provide a sample rep issuance.	ort, list of	receiving agencies	s, and speci	fy frequency of	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ons:				
Verification reports ar information on the ac	e provideo	<b>U</b>			
Respondents assigned	4	Responses	1	Response	100%





Question Rank:

Somewhat Important

### Question 342: Are high frequency errors used to update emergency department and hospital discharge database training content, data collection manuals, and validation rules?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which high frequency errors are used to update emergency department and hospital **Question Rank:** discharge database training content, data collection manuals, and validation Very Important rules.

### Assessor conclusions:

High frequency errors are used to improve the data collection. The database documentation manual was provided. When identified, users are required to resubmit the data to CHIA.

Respondents assigned	1 Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
-------------------------	----------------------	--------------------	------

### Question 343:

Are guality control reviews conducted to ensure the completeness, accuracy, and uniformity of injury data in the emergency department and hospital discharge databases?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample quality control review of injury records that details the system's data completeness.

### Assessor conclusions:

Provided in response to other quality questions were the Discharge Documentation Manuals; these manuals, while not provided for this question, are relevant. Quality control reviews are conducted to ensure the completeness, accuracy, and uniformity in the emergency department and hospital discharge databases overall, not specific to injury. The injury data ARE subject to the same edit checks and validation reviews as the rest of the database.

Respondents assigned	1 Responses received	1 Response rate	100%
-------------------------	----------------------	--------------------	------



### Question 344:

Are periodic comparative and trend analyses used to identify unexplained differences in the emergency department and hospital discharge data across years and agencies?

### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the analyses, provide a sample record or output, and specify their frequency.

### Assessor conclusions:

It was reported that when information is provided that shows unexplained differences, the information is discussed with the providers and may result in corrections and resubmissions.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 345: Is data quality feedb emergency departme managers?					
Standard of Eviden Describe the process feedback to inform p	s for trans		key users'	data quality	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion The Department of F quality concerns. A s	Public Hea	•	spital spe	cific reports to ide	·
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%







**Question Rank:** 

Less Important

# Question Rank: Somewhat Important Question 347: Are there automated edit checks and validation rules to ensure that entered data falls within a range of acceptable values and is logically consistent among data elements?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which automated edit checks and validation rules ensure entered data falls within the range of acceptable values and is logically consistent among fields.

### Assessor conclusions:

Automated edit checks and validation rules are documented in the Erwin Hirsch State Trauma Registry Data Dictionary.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

### Question 346:

Are emergency department and hospital discharge data quality management reports produced regularly and made available to the State TRCC?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample quality management report and specify frequency of transmission to the State TRCC.

### Assessor conclusions:

No data quality management reports for emergency department or hospital discharge data have been made available to the State TRCC.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

Assessor conclusion The report is rejected specifications which	d if there ar		atal errors a	s designated in t	he submission
Provide the formal m data is returned to the the statewide trauma	e collecting registry.				Question Rank: Very Important
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Question 349: Are there formally do collecting entity and		•	•••		
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Assessor conclusion Calculated fields are ISS calculations.		ne state level. Erro	neous AIS	and ICD9 codes	are excluded from
state-level correction the statewide trauma	registry.	s granted to qualit	y control sta	aff working with	Somewhat Important
Provide the formal m	ethodology				Question Rank:
Standard of Eviden	<u>60</u> .				
and omissions witho		<u> </u>			
	awida traiir	na rogistry in ordo	r to amond	obvious arrors	
Is limited state-level working with the stat					





				(The second seco	
Question 350:					
Are there timeliness registry managers an			d to the r	needs of trauma	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a complete li registry and explain h decision-making. Assessor conclusion Hospitals are require	now these n	measures are used	to inform	1	Question Rank: Very Important
Respondents assigned					
Question 351: Are there accuracy p registry managers ar	id data use		I to the n	eeds of trauma	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a complete li registry and explain h decision-making.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion Performance measur		ategories were pro	vided for	the State trauma	registry.
Respondents assigned	2	Responses		Response	50%





### Are there completeness performance measures tailored to the needs of trauma registry managers and data users? Standard of Evidence: Provide a complete list of completeness performance measures for the trauma registry and explain how these measures are used to inform **Question Rank:** decision-making. Very Important Assessor conclusions: A complete list of performance measures for the trauma registry system was provided. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate Question 353: Are there uniformity performance measures tailored to the needs of trauma registry managers and data users? Standard of Evidence: Provide a complete list of uniformity performance measures for the trauma registry and explain how these measures are used to inform Question Rank: decision-making. Very Important Assessor conclusions: A complete list of performance measures for the trauma registry system was provided. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate Question 354: Are there integration performance measures tailored to the needs of trauma registry managers and data users? Standard of Evidence: Provide a complete list of integration performance measures for the trauma **Question Rank:** registry and explain how these measures are used to inform decision-making. Very Important Assessor conclusions: A complete list of performance measures for the trauma registry system was provided. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% assigned received rate



Question 352:

				AND TO	
Question 355:					
Are there accessibility trauma registry manag			ored to the	e needs of	
Standard of Evidenc	e:				
Provide a complete lis registry and explain he decision-making.					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion There are accessibility MATRIS and Trauma	/ performa				
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 356: Has the State establis trauma registry perform Standard of Evidenc	mance m		ance me	trics—for each	
Provide specific nume attribute as determine	d by the S		nance me	asures for each	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion The State has establis performance measure Measures NHTSA 207	shed num as provid				
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



### Question 357:

Is there performance reporting for the trauma registry that provides specific timeliness, accuracy, and completeness feedback to each submitting entity?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a sample report, list of receiving agencies, and specify frequency of issuance.

### Assessor conclusions:

Upon submission, the data collection system provides feedback to the agency through feedback reports that indicate errors and omissions with the data.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

### Question 358:

Are high frequency errors used to update trauma registry training content, data collection manuals, and validation rules?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which high frequency errors are used to update trauma registry training content, data collection manuals, and validation rules.

### Assessor conclusions:

Submission error reports have been reportedly used to identify hospitals with a high frequency errors for identified fields. The result is an improvement on submission methodology to mitigate the problem.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	-----	--



**Question Rank:** 

Very Important





**Question Rank:** 

Very Important



### Are quality control reviews conducted to ensure the completeness, accuracy, and uniformity of injury data in the trauma registry? Standard of Evidence: Question Rank: Provide a sample quality control review of injury records that details the system's data completeness. Somewhat Important Assessor conclusions: Quality control reviews are conducted to ensure the completeness, accuracy, and uniformity in the trauma data overall, with additional quality control reviews specific to motor vehicle crashes. Injury data are subject to the same edit checks and validation reviews as the rest of the database. Respondents Responses Response 2 1 50% received assigned rate Question 360: Are periodic comparative and trend analyses used to identify unexplained differences in the trauma registry data across years and agencies? Standard of Evidence: Describe the analyses, provide a sample record or output, and specify their **Question Rank:** frequency. Less Important Assessor conclusions: Several examples were provided showing posters developed using analysis of trauma registry data. One example compared the available codes in the trauma registry with available hospital discharge codes. The comparative analyses meet the advisory ideal. Respondents Responses Response 3 2 66.7%

received



assigned

Question 359:

rate



**Question Rank:** 

Somewhat Important

### Question 361:

Is data quality feedback from key users regularly communicated to trauma registry data collectors and data managers?

### Standard of Evidence:

Describe the process for transmitting and utilizing key users' data quality feedback to inform program changes.

### Assessor conclusions:

DPH works regularly with hospital trauma registrars to update protocols and methodology to reduce the number of identified errors. In particular, improving the completeness and accuracy of SSN has been a priority.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 362:					
Are trauma registry d made available to the			rts produce	ed regularly and	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a sample qu transmission to the S			specify fre	quency of	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusion	ons:				
Trauma data quality request.	reports ar	e produced regularl	y, but only	provided to the T	RCC upon
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



Respondents	2	Responses	1	Response	50%
Errors found at the S correction.		can be identified and	d the reco	ord returned to the	e local agency for
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
Provide the formal m state-level correction vital records.		•	-		Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Question 364: Is limited state-level of working with vital rec without returning the	ords in ord	ler to amend obviou	is errors a		
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Assessor conclusic Edit checks are provi entered data. Coding	ded throug				against previously
acceptable values ar	d is logica			, j	Very Important
Provide the formal me edit checks and valid					Question Rank:
Standard of Eviden					
data falls within a ran among data elements	ge of acce				
	еон спеск	s and validation rule	es to ens	ure that entered	



### Question 365:

Are there formally documented processes for returning rejected data to the collecting entity and tracking resubmission to vital records?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide the formal methodology or describe the process by which rejected data is returned to the collecting agency and tracked through resubmission to vital records. **Question Rank:** Very Important

### Assessor conclusions:

It was reported that when a record is rejected it is documented in the application. The indicator that is placed on the record is not removed until the record is corrected and returned.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	-----	--

### **Question 366:**

Are there timeliness performance measures tailored to the needs of vital records managers and data users?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a complete list of timeliness performance measures for vital records and explain how these measures are used to inform decision-making.

### Assessor conclusions:

There is one timeliness measure: MGL ch.46§17B requires that the clerk of each city or town transmit the original record of death on or before the tenth day of the month. There are no other timeliness performance measures. The State has not moved to an electronic death certificate yet; all coding and data entry is done manually resulting in an extended turnaround time. Rated as "Does not meet" because the narrative reads as though the submission of death records by the tenth of the month is not enforced (no penalties for non-compliance were stated in the legislation) and there are no other performance measures related to timeliness.

Respondents 2	Responses	1 Response	50%
assigned	received	rate	











### **Question 367:**

Are there accuracy performance measures tailored to the needs of vital records managers and data users?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a complete list of accuracy performance measures for vital records and explain how these measures are used to inform decision-making.

Question Rank: Very Important

### Assessor conclusions:

When the cause of death information is entered into supermicar, they are ALL QC'ed internally. The record is entered initially then undergoes a quality control process before it goes to NCHS for coding. Once back the NCHS can request clarification if there are still questionable data.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 368:					
Are there completene records managers an			ailored to th	ne needs of vital	
Standard of Evidence	ce:				
Provide a complete line records and explain here decision-making.		•			Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusio	ons:				
All death certificate reidentified.	eports are	QC'ed interally. No	o specific p	erformance meas	sures have been
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



				(Zwit)	
Question 369:					$\frown$
Are there uniformity per records managers and			d to the ne	eds of vital	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Provide a complete lis and explain how these					Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusior All death certificate rep identified.		QC'ed internally. No	o specific	performance mea	asures have been
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 370: Are there integration p records managers and	d data us		ed to the n	eeds of vital	
Standard of Evidence	<b>.</b> .				
Stanuaru or Evidence	e:				
Provide a complete list and explain how these	t of integ				Question Rank: Very Important
Provide a complete lis	t of integr e measur ns: ve integra	es are used to inform	m decision	-making.	Very Important
Provide a complete list and explain how these Assessor conclusion The State does not ha	t of integr e measur ns: ve integra	es are used to inform	m decision	-making.	Very Important
Provide a complete list and explain how these Assessor conclusion The State does not hat managers and data us Respondents assigned	t of integr e measur ns: ve integr sers.	es are used to inforr ation performance m Responses	m decision neasures t	i-making. ailored to the nee <b>Response</b>	Very Important
Provide a complete list and explain how these Assessor conclusion The State does not hat managers and data us Respondents assigned	t of integr e measur ns: ve integr sers. 2 performa	es are used to inforr ation performance m Responses received	m decision neasures ta 1	i-making. ailored to the nee Response rate	Very Important
Provide a complete list and explain how these Assessor conclusion The State does not hat managers and data us Respondents assigned Question 371: Are there accessibility	t of integr e measur ns: ve integr sers. 2 performa d data us	es are used to inforr ation performance m Responses received	m decision neasures ta 1	i-making. ailored to the nee Response rate	Very Important
Provide a complete list and explain how these Assessor conclusion The State does not hat managers and data us Respondents assigned Question 371: Are there accessibility records managers and	t of integration of acceleration of	es are used to inforr ation performance m Responses received ance measures tailo ers?	m decision neasures ta 1 ored to the e measure	i-making. ailored to the nee <b>Response</b> rate	Very Important
Provide a complete list and explain how these Assessor conclusion The State does not hat managers and data us Respondents assigned Question 371: Are there accessibility records managers and Standard of Evidence Provide a complete list records and explain how decision-making. Assessor conclusion	t of integration of i	es are used to inforr ation performance m <b>Responses</b> <b>received</b> ance measures tailo ers? ssibility performance measures are used	m decision neasures ta 1 ored to the e measure I to inform	i-making. ailored to the nee <b>Response</b> rate	Very Important eds of vital records 50%
Provide a complete list and explain how these Assessor conclusion The State does not hat managers and data us Respondents assigned Question 371: Are there accessibility records managers and Standard of Evidence Provide a complete lis records and explain he decision-making.	t of integration of i	es are used to inforr ation performance m <b>Responses</b> <b>received</b> ance measures tailo ers? ssibility performance measures are used	m decision neasures ta 1 ored to the e measure I to inform	i-making. ailored to the nee <b>Response</b> rate	Very Important eds of vital records 50%



Question 372:					$\frown$
Has the State establi vital records performation		<b>•</b> •	ance met	rics—for each	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide specific num attribute as determine	-	•	ance mea	asures for each	Question Rank: Somewhat
Assessor conclusio	ons:				Important
No State established	numeric	goals for vital record	s are avai	ilable.	
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 373:					
Is there performance timeliness, accuracy,	•		•	-	
Standard of Eviden	ce:				
Provide a sample rer	ort list of	receiving agencies,	and spec	cify frequency of	
issuance.		, receiving ageneice,			Question Rank: Very Important
issuance. Assessor conclusic	ons:				
issuance. Assessor conclusic	ons:				
issuance. Assessor conclusio No performance repo Respondents assigned	ons: orts are m	ade available to the Responses	submittin	g agencies. Response	Very Important
issuance. Assessor conclusio No performance repo Respondents assigned Question 374: Are high frequency e	ons: orts are m 2 rrors used	ade available to the Responses received	submitting	g agencies. Response rate	Very Important
issuance. Assessor conclusion No performance report Respondents assigned Question 374: Are high frequency e collection manuals, a	ons: orts are m 2 rrors used ind valida	ade available to the Responses received	submitting	g agencies. Response rate	Very Important
issuance. Assessor conclusic No performance repo Respondents	ons: orts are m 2 rrors used ind valida ce: ethodolog used to u	ade available to the <b>Responses</b> <b>received</b> d to update vital reco tion rules? gy or describe the pro- pdate vital records tr	submitting 1 rds trainir	g agencies. Response rate	Very Important
Assessor conclusion No performance report Respondents assigned Question 374: Are high frequency e collection manuals, a Standard of Evidence Provide the formal m frequency errors are	ons: orts are m 2 rrors used ind validat ce: ethodolog used to u ind validat ons: ngoing the	ade available to the Responses received d to update vital reco tion rules? gy or describe the pro- pdate vital records tr tion rules. e Electronic Death R	submitting 1 rds trainir ocess by v aining co	g agencies. Response rate	Very Important 50%



Describe the analyses frequency.	Question Rank: Less Important				
Assessor conclusio	ns:				
Trend data is analyze	d using J	loinpoint. Deviations	s are noted	and investigated	1.
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%
Question 377:					
Is data quality feedba records data collector Standard of Evidence	s and dat		communica	ited to vital	
Describe the process feedback to inform pro		• •	key users'	data quality	Question Rank: Somewhat Important
Assessor conclusio	ns:				•
It was reported that us	sers of th	e data within the De	epartment of	of Public Health p	provide feedback.
Comments and conce	erns are i	nvestigated.			
Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%





Somewhat Important

50%

# Question Rank: Provide a sample quality control review of injury records that details the system's data completeness. Assessor conclusions: njury data is not subject to separate quality control performance measures. Quality control is performed on all vital (death) records. Respondents Response Responses 1 2 assigned received rate Question 376: Are periodic comparative and trend analyses used to identify unexplained differences in the vital records data across years and agencies? Standard of Evidence:

Question 375:

Standard of Evidence:

Describe the analyses, provide a sample record or output, and specify their	6
frequency.	

Are quality control reviews conducted to ensure the completeness, accuracy,

and uniformity of injury data in the vital records?

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	1	Response rate	50%



Provide a sample quality management report and specify frequency of transmission to the State TRCC.		Question Rank: Somewhat Important		
Standard of Evidend	e:			
Are vital records data made available to the		produced	regularly and	
Question 378:				





### **Data Use and Integration**

Data integration involves the use of disparate datasets in varying combinations to provide data users and policy makers the ability to view and analyze data in a manner that is not possible using a single data source. Integrated data can be used to improve problem identification and program evaluation activities at the state and local level by using other traffic records systems to provide an additional level of information and detail. These additional data can often help decision makers develop a more accurate picture of existing and emerging highway safety problems. The process of integrating data, however, is frequently challenging as the databases are managed and housed by different agencies and collected for the specific business activities of those particular agencies.

Massachusetts has a long history of using traffic records data for analysis and with integrating various components of the traffic records system for further investigation. Initially, data linkage efforts were achieved through the CODES project and currently they are conducted through the activities of MassTRAC and UMassSafe. Both the public and the State's decision-makers have access to a variety of epidemiologists, analysts, and user-friendly access tools for the use and analysis of traffic records data. At this time, the focus appears to be primarily on the crash, roadway, and citation data files. However, data from the other traffic records system components are available and the State is working with its partners to improve access and integration.

The traffic safety and public health stakeholders in Massachusetts have access to data from the six primary traffic records components (crash, roadway, driver, vehicle, citation, and injury surveillance). As with most States, the data are housed separately and individual data owners are responsible for maintaining their own data sets and providing data quality management under the oversight of the Statewide Quality Advisory Committee.

In addition to the availability of individual data from these systems, Massachusetts was a member of the CODES data network from the mid-1990s through 2010. Through the CODES program the State had established an integrated data set comprised of crash, emergency department, and hospital inpatient information. This data set was used to provide injury and hospital charge information on a variety of highway safety topics. While the CODES project is no longer active in Massachusetts, other activities have been undertaken to improve traffic records data quality and access.

With the support of the State's Traffic Records Coordinating Committee, there are two primary efforts underway to update and improve the use of integrated highway safety data. In the first, the Highway Safety Division (HSD) contracted with a vendor to help alleviate the limited access that the HSD and other stakeholders had to crash and citation data. The resultant product – the Massachusetts Traffic Records Analysis Center (MassTRAC) – allows users to analyze crash, person, and vehicle data in a variety of applications. In addition to the ability to develop map-based displays and perform spatial queries, summary data tables can be produced for use in the development of various highway safety plans. The MassTRAC software is versatile enough to support the needs of users with varying levels of training and analytical skills and includes an ad hoc reporting function to allow users to produce custom report that include up to three years of data.





The second effort, UMassSafe, is a multidisciplinary traffic safety research program housed in the University of Massachusetts Transportation Center. UMassSafe collects and analyzes crash data, examines data quality issues, provides data training, and makes recommendations for improvements in the systems. For the coming year, the TRCC has approved a project for UMassSafe to investigate linkage strategies that would lead towards the development of a centralized, uniform crash analysis database.

Several specific projects that have utilized integrated traffic records data include: MassDOT's use of the geographical location of crash data integrated with the roadway file to provide the information for the development of safety improvement projects and to report the top 200 high crash intersection locations within the State; crash data and citation data are linked in MassTRAC using driver's license number and date and location of incident; records that result in an exact match on all three attributes are included in a database that is uploaded biannually by MassTRAC.

With support from the TRCC, the expertise and infrastructure is available in Massachusetts to take advantage of a number of opportunities related to data integration: coordinate efforts of MassTRAC and UMassSafe to maximize the use of data from the traffic records system components, both individually and collectively; pursue the re-inclusion of injury surveillance system data within the guidelines of the State's data committee; pursue the inclusion of driver and vehicle information in the MassTRAC or UMassSafe projects; and complete the update of the Data Resource Guide to include information about the traffic records data systems and integration methodology.

Massachusetts has a long history of using disparate datasets in varying combinations to provide data users and policy makers the ability to view and analyze data. Data linkage efforts were achieved through the CODES project operated in prior years. Currently they are conducted through the activities of MassTRAC and UMassSafe.



### Question 379:

Do behavioral program managers have access to traffic records data and analytic resources for problem identification, priority setting, and program evaluation?

### Standard of Evidence:

Identify the data source(s), (crash, roadway, driver, vehicle, citation adjudication, injury surveillance), discuss and provide examples of program **Question Rank:** specific analysis (e.g., reports, fact sheets, web pages, ad hoc analyses.

### Assessor conclusions:

Injury Prevention Specialists in the Injury Prevention and Control Program (IPCP) work closely with epidemiologists in the Injury Surveillance and other MDPH programs who regularly provide IPCP staff with MV injury data. Massachusetts Department of Public Health (MDPH) injury epidemiologists routinely provide IPCP staff with MV injury data based on emergency department, hospital discharge, observation stay data and vital records data. MDPH injury epidemiologists also provide IPCP staff with MV-related risk behavior data from the MA Youth Risk Behavior Survey and MA Youth Health Survey. Within the Highway Safety Division the Massachusetts Traffic Records Analysis Center has been developed allowing users the ability to perform key spatial and statistical analytic functions using crash, person, and vehicle data; create map-based displays and perform queries of crash locations, etc. The products are used to assist the development of various highway safety plans.

Respondents assigned	Responses received	2 Response rate	100%
----------------------	-----------------------	--------------------	------

### Question 380:

Does the State have a data governance process?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a narrative detailing the State's data governance process, identifying the personnel involved and describing how it supports traffic safety data integration and formal data quality management.

### Assessor conclusions:

The data owners of the individual agencies are responsible for managing their own information and providing quality control.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	2	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	--------------------	---	------------------	------	--







Very Important







### Question 381:

Does the State have a formal traffic records system inventory that identifies linkages useful to the State and data access policies?

### Standard of Evidence:

Provide a copy of the system inventory specifying all traffic records data sources, system custodians, data elements and attributes, linkage variables, linkages useful to the State, and data access policies. Very

### Question Rank: Very Important

### Assessor conclusions:

The Data Resource Guide was begun in 2000. That document would provide a system inventory for traffic records data but needs to be completed and updated.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 382: Does the TRCC prom	oto data	integration by aiding	in the de	velopment of	
data governance, acc				-	
Standard of Evidence	e:				
Identify, with appropri demonstrate the prom strategic plan.)					Question Rank: Somewhat Important

### Assessor conclusions:

Massachusetts was a CODES State through 2010 but linkage activities have not been continued. The TRCC has approved a project for 2014 to investigate additional linkage strategies.

Respondents assigned	1 Respon recei	· · · · ·	Response rate	100%
-------------------------	-------------------	-----------	------------------	------









**Question Rank:** 

Very Important

### Question 385:

Is roadway data integrated with crash data for specific analytical purposes?

### Standard of Evidence:

Document an integrative crash-roadway link, the linkage variables, and example analysis, and the frequency of linkage. Example analyses could include the identification of high crash locations and locations with similar roadway attributes or an assessment of engineering countermeasures' effectiveness.

### Assessor conclusions:

The MassDOT Highway Division has developed an automated procedure for processing, standardizing, matching, and aggregating the crash data by geographical location daily using GIS tools and procedures. At least one of supporting documents appears to use data from 2010.

Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%
Question 386: Is citation and adjudic analytical purposes?	cation dat	ta integrated with cra	ash data fo	or specific	
Standard of Evidence	ce:				
Document an integra- variables, and examp analyses could includ actions and crashes f of crash-involved DU	le analys le an ass or specif	sis, and the frequenc essment of the relati ic driver subpopulati	y of linkag ionship be	ge. Example tween illegal <b>G</b>	Question Rank: Very Important
Assessor conclusion Efforts are made to lind date, and city/town.	-	es and citations throu	ıgh MassT	RAC using driver's	license number,
Respondents assigned	1	Responses received	1	Response rate	100%















### Question 391:

Does the public have access to resources—skilled personnel and user-friendly access tools—for the use and analysis of integrated datasets?

### Standard of Evidence:

Identify the analytical resources available to the public: personnel, software, or online resources. Specify how the public has access to these resources.

Question Rank: Somewhat Important

### Assessor conclusions:

The public has access to data analysts who are able to receive and respond to data requests. The Department of Public Health also provides access to Community Health Information Profile system which provides access to an online query system for several ISS components.

Respondents assigned	2	Responses received	2	Response rate	100%	
-------------------------	---	-----------------------	---	------------------	------	--





## **Appendix A**

### **Assessment Participants**

### State Highway Safety Office Representative(s)

Mr. Arthur Kinsman Highway Safety Division of the Office of Grants and Research Director

Ms. Barbara Rizzuti Highway Safety Division Program Coordinator

### Traffic Records Coordinator(s)

Ms. Barbara Rizzuti Highway Safety Division Program Coordinator

### **State Assessment Coordinator(s)**

Mr. Richard Conard Massachusetts Department of Transportation Transportation Planner

Ms. Ridgely Ficks Massachusetts Department of Public Health

Mr. Richard Hill Registry of Motor Vehicles / Merit Rating Board Assistant Director of Operators

Ms. Sylvia D Hobbs Center for Health Information and Analysis (formerly known as the DHCFP) Director of Research & Evaluation

Mr. Jerry O'Keefe Bureau of Health Information, Statistics, Research, and Evaluation Director

Ms. Karen Perduyn Massachusetts Department of Transportation Crash Data Manager

Ms. Barbara Rizzuti Highway Safety Division Program Coordinator





### NHTSA Regional Office Coordinator(s)

Ms. Charlene Oakley NHTSA Regional Program Manager

### NHTSA Headquarters Coordinator

Mr. Luke Johnson National Highway Traffic Safety Administration Program Analyst





**State and Local Respondents** The following State and Local staff assisted in the Assessment by providing responses to the Advisory criteria and questions.

Name	Agency	Title
Mr. Richard Conard	Massachusetts Department of Transportation	Transportation Planner
Ms. Ridgely Ficks	Massachusetts Department of Public Health	-
Mr. Raymond Guarino	Old Colony Planning Council	Planner
Ms. Jeanne Hathaway	MA Department of Public Health	Epidemiologist
Mr. Richard Hill	Registry of Motor Vehicles / Merit Rating Board	Assistant Director of Operators
Ms. Kathy Jacob	Central Transportation Planning Staff	Planner
Ms. Alice Mroszczyk	MA Department of Public Health	Confidential Data Officer
Ms. Sharon Pagnano	MA Department of Public Health	Human Services Program Planner
Ms. Karen Perduyn	Massachusetts Department of Transportation	Crash Data Manager
Ms. Jacqueline Philyaw	Registry of Motor Vehicles	FARS Supervisor
Ms. Bonnie Polin	Massachusetts Department of Transportation	Chief Safety Analyst
Ms. Barbara Rizzuti	Highway Safety Division	Program Coordinator
Mr. Jose Simo	MassDOT	Program Planner
Mr. George Snow	MRPC	Principal Transportation Planner





### **Assessment Team Members**

Mr. Michael Archibeque Mr. Larry Cook Ph.D. Mr. Cory Hutchinson Ms. Maureen Johnson Mr. Tim Kerns Mr. Chris Madill Mr. Dan Magri Mr. Michael McDonald Ms. Mitra Neshatfar Ms. Sladjana Oulad Daoud Dr. Allen Parrish Dr. Robert A Scopatz Ph.D. Ms. Tracy Joyce Smith





# Appendix B

## National Acronyms and Abbreviations





IRB ISS	Institutional Review Board Injury Severity Score
IT	information technology
JIEM	Justice Information Exchange Model
LEIN	Law Enforcement Information Network
MADD	Mothers Against Drunk Driving
MCMIS	Motor Carrier Management Information System
MIDRIS	Model Impaired Driving Records Information System
MIRE	Model Inventory of Roadway Elements
MMUCC	Model Minimum Uniform Crash Criteria
MOU	memorandum of understanding
MPO	metropolitan planning organization
NAPHSIS	National Association for Public Health Statistics and Information Systems
NCHS	National Center for Health Statistics
NCIC	National Crime Information Center
NCSC	National Center for State Courts
NDR	National Driver Registry
NEMSIS	National Emergency Medical Service Information System
NGA	National Governor's Association
NHTSA	National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
NIBRS	National Incident-Based Reporting System
NIEM	National Information Exchange Model
NLETS	National Law Enforcement Telecommunication System
NMVTIS	National Motor Vehicle Title Information System
NTDS	National Trauma Data Standard
PAR	police accident report
PDPS	Problem Driver Pointer System
PDO PII	property damage only
RA	personally identifiable information
RPM	Regional Administrator (NHTSA) Regional Program Manager (NHTSA)
RTS	Revised Trauma Score
RMS	records management system
RPC	Regional Planning Commission
SAVE	Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements
SHSP	Strategic Highway Safety Plan
SME	subject matter expert
SSOLV	Social Security Online Verification
STRAP	State Traffic Records Assessment Program
SWISS	Statewide Injury Surveillance System
TCD	Traffic Control Devices
TRA	Traffic Records Assessment
TRIPRS	Traffic Records Improvement Program Reporting System
TRCC	Traffic Records Coordinating Committee
TRS	Traffic Records System
UCR	Uniform Crime Reports
VIN	Vehicle Identification Number
VMT	vehicle miles traveled
XML	Extensible Markup Language





# State-Specific Acronyms and Abbreviations

ALARS CDS CHIA	Automated License and Registration System Crash Data System Massachusetts Center for Health Information and Analysis
EDRS	Electronic Death Reporting System
EOPSS	Executive Office of Public Safety and Security
MACCS	Motor Vehicle Automated Citation and Crash System
MATRIS	Massachusetts Trauma Registry Information System
MassDOT	Massachusetts Department of Transportation
STSISIG	State Traffic Safety Information System Improvement Grants

